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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

A resilient performance in an unprecedented year

I am pleased to report the financiai results for the year ended 31 December 2020 for Drive Topco Lirmted Group and
its operaling and tracing business, FirstPort Limited and its subsidianes (collectively, "FirstPort”™ and the “Group”),
FirstPort 15 a leading prowider of UK residential property services and also offers management of residential and
commarcial assels for its chent base

Drive Topco Limited was incorparated on 11 June 2019 and the Group was formed on 6 September 2019 foliowing
the acquisition of Knight Square Holdings Limited Group. which FirstPort s a part of The financ:al statements on
pages 27 t0 74 therefore shows comparatives for the 7 month peniod from incerporation which inctudes trading for
the 4 momh period snce the acgquisiuon of Knight Square Heldings Limied Group on & September 2019,

This report will provide commentary on the 2020 year and ils comparatves to the 12 months performance of the
FirstPort businesses in 2019 o altow for meaningful analysis and to demanstrate the strength of the business as the
2019 Group: resulis ame not a full yeas comparative n these financial statements.

FirstPort

As the waild grappied with the unprecedented impact of a global pandemic. | am pleased to report that FirstPort has
been stable and resient throughaut 2020, wath an unwavering locus on the weltbeing of customers. employees. and
supply chain

FirstPort s a significant provider of residential property managemaent services in the UK and has further cemented s
position as the largest private resdental propeny manager w what remains a highly fragimeated market  With almost
290 000 homes under management. across 5.000 developments FusiPort continues to play a key role mn driving
higher standards across the sector and championing a customer fust approach  FirstPort s customer service
performance and brand reputation also continued to improve m 2020

COVID-19

FirstPart responded well to the chatlenges presentad by COVID 19 Services continued to he delivered for
residential customers and clients with adapted cperational strateqgies to respond to changing Government guidance
Field and office-based employees adapied well to remote working and productivily remained high  Mast site-based
employees remained in place at developments to provide essenbial support for their residents in a sacially distanced
and safe way This has been especially important for FirstPort's more vulnerabie residents particuiarty the
retirement households it supports acroas 1 500 independent retirement communiies  While some revenue streams
have inevitably been defayed or impacled such as our resales servies. the business has responded prudently to
ensure conlinued hugh service for customers and chents alongside a stable financial performance during this
unprecedented period

Market change

Changing Government guidance on bullding and fire safety bas continued to present chailenges for the whole
residential property management secior  FirstPort has responded well with the formation of a dedicated burllding
safety team to manage applications 1o relevamt Governmen! funding streams inciuding the coordination of
investigative and remediation works  This team has been consiructed 1o ensure residential customers are well
supported through these processes

Group outlook

FirstPort has demonsirated its resitence through 2020 and 1s well positioned o successfully meet the changing
demands of an evolving industry fandscape  The businass remans in a strong posihon mowing out of 2020 having
made hwo strategic acqguisiions and a record orderbook of new business to mobilise

The Board remains committed to delivenng market-ieading servirces through excellent customer service, the
deployment of a new technology-gnabled platform soon and gutstanding employee engagement. FirstPort is ready
to further build upon s position as a leading res:dential service pravider

Paul Lester CBE

Chairman

30 April 2021
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Our 2020 strategic development paves the way to achieving our growth potential
Principal activities

FirstPort is one of the UK's largest resigential property services business, with over 40 years’ expernence and a
large satisfied custuiner base  Our principal activity can be segmented inta two key areas.

*  Cur residential offerings which encompasses procuring and delivering services to residenbal customers in
communal developments — from blocks of apartments to estates of houses

*  QOuwr client-based offering which encompasses the management of residential and commerciatl assets for our
investor client base Additional services offered in this segment inciude ground rent collection. consulting,
surveying. lettings, and resales services

Our purpose

FirstPort s primary ohjective ts to ensure that residents living in developments it manages, are safe and well-served
within the legislative reggme  Our 3.800 employees help us achieve our objeciives daily. caring for the places our
custemers call home They do their upmost to ensure that buiidings where our residents hve and share with thesr
neighbours. are safe. clean, and comfortable Customers don't have to worry about finding the nght suppler,
getling the best deal woarking out how to sphit the bill with their netghbours or making sure there's enough money
in thesr development's bank account to pay for everything — FirstPort manages all of that so our customers can get
on with enjoying their homes and communities

For our investor chents. our approach is centered arcund supgorting therr residents and the assets they own We
provide regular updates through our reporting tools to ensure investors have accurate and up o date information to
make the decisions they need Whether we are managing a customer's home or a clients’ asset. we seek to
nurlure strong refationships with all stakeholders to aid understanding and support their needs

Qur operating model

Since the acquisibon of Mainstay in September 2020, FirstPort's business 1s structured into two main operating
divisions that are independent from each other with their own leadership team. brand. and palicies — residential
services, and commercial and asset management

The residential services division s dehvered under the FirstPont brand (Business to Consumer) and consists of six
operatianal areas of focus that each care for their specific residental customer in its own unigue way with s own
dedicated team to deliver a high qualty service for that segment The operational areas are, Luxury, Large and
Complex. Property Services, Estates, Build To Rent delvery. and Retirement

The cammerctal and asset management division 1s delivered under the Mainstay brand {Business to Busmness).
acts independently and prevides confidence to our client base that ther assets are in safe hands  Under this
division a range of services are provided which include commercial faciliies management residential asset
management and residential market services (ground rent coilections. build-tc-rent aperations. letings and sales)

Both divisions are supported by centralised professional in-house teams that provide their expertise across a wide
range of areas to ensure that customers and clients receive the exceptional service reguired

Market backdrop

FirstPart 1s the largest private residential property manager. with a portfolio of 280.000 homes across 5,000
developments There are an estimated 5 3 million leasehcld homes in England, of which 85% are managed The
Government has set a target for new builds annually at circa G 3 mullign per annum  The target 1s expected to be
achieved in the future with all measures indicating that housing demand in the UK remains high thus highlighting
the growth potential of the UK housing market.
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As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. most of the country spent more time at home in 2020 than ever before
The impertance of having a welt-managed home environment and the positive benefits of communities have never
been clearer FirstPort adapted its approach te meet guidelines on safety and wellbeing but ensured where
possible that community spint and on-going management of common areas continued  As such, FirstPort is well
positianed tc continue to grow. supporting residential customers in both new build and existing communities who
value a professional approach o the management of their homes

Residential Market

While the nationa! response to COVID-19 earlier in 2020 inevitably slowed the new build market due to construction
and sales shutdowns. this picked up again during the second half of the year as the country adapted 1o the ‘new
normal Most new buiid developments take several years to complete and unwind into active management.
meaning FirstPort's new build orderbook continued to mobilise in 2020 despite delays

The Governmant's stamp duty holiday also stimulated wcreased demand and consumer confidence. with the
number of sales agreed in 2020 up 10% compared to 2018 While it remains 1o be seen whether this demand will
be sustained after the stamp duty haliday ends in June. it seems uniikely that house buying achivity will slump as the
country recovers fram the \mpact of COGVID-19

Building and fire safety remains a priority

Seclor-wide challenges relating to bullding and fire safety have continued. with an anticipated 1 27m flats across
the UK impacted by changing Government guidance with many leaseholders now required to obtain an Externat
Wall Systemn fire review form ("EWS1") As aresult seme impacted leasehclders are struggling to re-mortgage or
se!l their homes. with an estimated 30.000 house sales having alieady fallen through as a result  FirstPort, like
property managers across the country, sees first-hand the custorer concerns and frustrations as these legacy
safety (ssues are tackled

As of February 2021. the Government has committed to making a total of £5bn funding available to help impacted
leasehoiders in buildings over 18 metres in height to remedsate their buildings in ine with these standards.
However it1s yel to be seen if this will be sufficient  For buldings under 18 metres, funding s not available and at
present the Government is suggesting the offering of a ioan scheme for impacted leaseholders

FirstPort s sector leading health and safety expertise has underpmned our respense to these challenges. and a
separate buliding safety team has been formed to support both customers and clients  The business made 173
registrations to the nen-ACM remedtation fund on behaif of bulding owners and leaseholders While the Fund
continues to assess regstrations dunng 2021, FirstPort's response and approvai rate for apphcations is tracking
above the national average This is a positive step forward for leaseholders. buf inevitably due to the size of the
fund and number of buiidings submitted nationally, the outcome remains uncertain  We are worksng hard to
suppert all those mpactaed dunng this uncertain and chaltenging tme  Qur prionty is the safety of our residents and
we will be doing all we can to heip them work through their funding cutcome and any necessary remediation of their
building including ongaing engagement with Government and across the seclor to seek helpful and practicable
solubions

In 2020, FirstPort's building safety team alsa successfully secured over 1,100 new EWS1 forms for more than 440
residential developments in our care. positively impacling over 8100 homes at these sites and enabling many of
these customers to move or remortgage

Natignal awareness of these challenges has significantly increased in 2020. with media campaigns telling the very
human stories of impacted leasehotders and seeking positive change to unlock thes stuation  The sector's industry
bodies. FirstPort and other leading property managers. are continuing to work together with all partes including
lobbying Government. to seek practical solutions and support for leaseholders

Regulatory Reform

Government momentum towards possible changes to the leasehold system has contnued. along with
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consideration of future regulation for managing agents. The driver for these reforms 1s increased suppor for
consumers, gving leasehalders greater say over how their developments are run and greater confidence in the
organisations' managing their homes

While leasebold reform will likely give residents greater responsibility in the future. complex residential buldings
and developments will continue to need professional managers with a range of skil's and well-trained staff working
to high standards. FirstPori already looks after more than 1,000 resident managed developments, estimated ta be
the largest resident managed portfolio in the UK In a recent survey conducted with some of cur resident directors,
79% of respondents indicated that therr groperty manager was therr first point of call for support ang advice Trust.
quality, and service also ranked as mast important to respondents when it came to their managing agent

These findings conbirm that FirstPart is well placed to suppoert customers with the management of their
developments both now and in the future and we have long welcomed greater resident engagemant and
invalvernent

Mandatory regulfation of managing agents also presents an opportunity for FirstPort Hawving embraced voluntary
regulation via ARMA-Q accreditation many years ago, we already work to the high standards that the whole sector
is likely to be held to in due course We are supportive of this drive towards sector-wide reguiation. which will
undoubtedly set higher standards and give consumers much needed trust and confidence n the services delivered
by professional property managers Some market consotidation can be expected as a result of these on-going
reforms. which represents an opportunity for acquisitive growth and professionahsation

COVID-19 response

FirstPort s response to COVID-19 has proven the business to be both steadfast and adaptabie The business
adaptad its approach rapidly to make sure it could still detiver services to customers and clients in a safe and
compliant way An executive response group has been in place and meeting frequently since early March 2020 to
manage the business’ response to COVID-19 This group continues to meet weekly 1o ensure any adaptations to
the business’ approach in response to the changing situation and Government advice can be discussed, agreed,
and implemented at pace

Despite the challenges presented by COVID-18, FirstPort has remained residient with stable year-on-year adjusted
EBITDA and cash generation, continued organic and acquisitive grewth, and en-going improvements to customer
sentiment and brand reputation

Qur site-based staff remained in place throughout the pandemic to provide critical services for residents, making
sure that ther development continued to run safely and smoothly The presence of our on-site teams has been
impoertant. We adapted our management approaches to make sure we could deliver aur services while keeping
both our empioyees and residents safe Every development is different from amenities to concierge desks and
parcel rocms. meaning there was no ‘one size fits all’ approach Our operations teams have worked hard to apply
corporate and Government guidance to their develepments to ensure that a suitahly adapted approach was in ptace
for every property in our care.

For our most vulnerable residents in the retirement communities we manage. our employees went above and
beyond for their customers  We introduced enhanced cleaning regimes, as well as visitor and communal space
restrictions well ahead of the first national tockdown in March 2020 to make sure our residents were protected Qur
retirement development managers have remained on site to supgort their customers throughout the pandemic and
have adapted their routines to make sure social distancing and hygiene measures were In place

We also recagnised that isolation and ioneliness was likely to prove as much of a challenge to the residents as the
physical risks presented by COVID-18. particularly while communal lounges were shut for safety reasons Qur
development managers continued to check in on all therr customers regularly. making cails to residents’
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apartments rather than physically wisiting. and we shared weekly wntten updates with our retirement customers,
alang with packs of puzzles and crosswords for those whoe wanted something to help keep them entertained Our
regular retirement magazine and videcs also provided helpful diet and exercise tips, as well as interesting articles.

FistPort's office and field-based employees also adapted well to their change in working patterns At the start of
the pandemic, the business rapidly mobilised to enable remate working for all these staff. including those working in
our customer contact centres  Praductivity remained high and employees demonstrated a continued commitment
to delivering excellent customer and chient service  Employees have been surveyed and the majority have indicated
a preference towards a flexible working approach past-COVID-18. cambining increased home working as well as
some fime in the office  As a result. we are continuing to assess our office footprints and environments with our
future working patterns v mind.

Five-star Health and Safety

In 2015, FirstPort was the first organisation within the property management sector to achigve a five-star rating from
the British Safety Council Five years later, we have achieved our hifth consecutive five-star rating in our
Occupational Health and Safety Auditin 2020, as well as receiving the Briish Safety Council's prestigious Sword of
Henour 1n 2019, recagmising excellence in health and safety management

When lockeng after people’'s homes. safety 1s of the utmost importance  These assessments of our health and
safety performance have consistently recognised the embedded culture across our arganisatian. a clear
commitment from senior management an enthusiastic health and safety team and geod processes for stakeholder
engagement, comglhance monitoning and tulding management We take our obligatiens for safety across office.
operational, and development sites very senously. along with the risks to staff traveling between locations  These
abligations extend to staff, residents. visitors contractors, and mermbers of the public  Risks are mitigated by our
strong health and safety culture. a safety nsk register, continuous monitoring and reporting of accidents and near
misses.

Acquisitive Growth

FrstPort has continued to grow in 2020, making two strategic acquisitions that further strengthens its positon as
sector leader  On 15 September 2020, FirstPont acquired 100% of the share capital of the Mainstay Group
("Mainstay’) and on 2 December 2020, 100% of the share capital of the Chamonix Group ("Chamenix”) The
combined acquisitions added approximately 92,000 homes to the Greup. and we aim to ensure that their residents
benefit from the combined skills that will be nurtured together to delver their service Costs associated with the
fransactions can be found in the exceptional spend highlighted in the profit and loss account

in a fragmented market that 1s undergoing regulatory scrutiny for the night reasons, we feel that it rs impartant that
the varied skill sets in the market are combined where possible  Qur aim in daing s0. 15 to provide continuity for
those smaller organisations that may struggie with ongoing regulatory change and increased standards whilst
harnessing thexr capabilities to provide customers and clients with professional management FirstPort, though the
largest UK property manager, remains a small proportion of the market so the potential to support others whilst
retaining customer choice 1s attainable

Tech-enabled future of FirstPort

FirstPort has continued to invest in lechnology throughout 2020 via our comprehensive transformation programme
The first phase is due to complete and roll-out in 2021 with additional functionalty and services being added at iater
stages

Qur principles when embarking on this approach was to truly become a connected enterprise add value to all
stakeholders, customers. clients, suppliers. and employees We seek to differentiate ourselves through the
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platform being built by connecting stakeholders seamlessly and in ways and at imes that are convenient ta them
The data access and ymproved communication will improve significantly making responding to the chailenges our
sector faces easier to adaptto However. we have been clear that this isn't just a tech-enabled approach so
through our design phases we have sought to remave the administrative burden our service dictates atlowing our
colleagues to spend mare time on proactive engagement with customers and chents lo uffimately defiver a marke!-
leading service that they deserve  We feel this lechnology enabled bul people first approach brings a unique and
distinchve blend of caring for homes backed by helpfui technolagy that best responds to modern lifestyles

Our People

We recognise that our people play a leading role in cur service delivery and are central to how our brand 1s
expenenced n hemes and in society  In 2020, we had the privilege of welcoming new colleagues from Mainstay
and Chamonix. taking us to over 3,800 empioyees by the end of the year \While our people cover 8 wide range of
skitls and disciplines they are umited in therr professionalism and dedication to doing the nght thing for their
customers

Cur commitment lo our employees has again been recognised by the Top Employers inshtute Foltowing a

rigerous assessment in late 2020. FirstPort has been named one of the UK's 2021 Top Employers — a preshgious
certification which we have now achueved for the third consecutive year. This accreditation, alongside our 4 2 out
of 5 rating on employae review site. Glassdoor. sets FirstPorl apart from our competitors as a true induslry ieader

We operate a robust and active equal opportunity policy, and pnde ourselves on our diverse workforce  Our
empioyees successfully bring together different competencies. skills and speciahsms educational backgrounds.
ethmcity, rehgious beltefs, and physical abilities, and we judge performance without prejudice or discriminatien Al
calleagues are welcomed and supported in our inclusive culture  Qur poticy enables and supports the recruitment
of disabled workers We provide assistance needed wih initial training and we adap! the workplace as
appropnate

As a business we consult and discuss wath employees both individually and collectively. aboul any matters hkely
to impact their interes!s  We value open communication, with impartant sinformation and updates shared with
emplayees through regular news bullelins, as well as menthly CEO and executtve updates. to ensure all gur
employees are aware of any factors affecting our business.

We understand the imporiance of wellbeing. and that this has been more important than ever in such an
unprecedented year Our employees’ mental heaith and wellbeing are supponed through cur Employee
Assistance Programme, as well as colleagues trained as Mental Health First Aiders  During COVID-19, regutar
communications and additional support have been provided to employees across the business, from shanng
snformation on available mentat health resources 1o ips for home-schaching parents

We place great wnporlance on making sure our employees are traned and devetop therr petential Qur
managemant process helps to regularly identfy any additional training that may be required Lo help employees
pursue and remain competent for their rales  Our e-learning platferm inciudes training modules designed to make
sure we all. act in a fawful and compliant way while conducting day to day duties, this includes data pnivacy. anti-
bribery and anti-meney laundenng. madern slavery and health and safety legislation For hugh risk tepics.
employees are required to complete this training annually  To suppoert employee growth onhne traiming medules
also cover a range of development topics, fram becoming a great leader through to how to mentor and coach
others

Our investment 1n our people has continued, despite the challenges presented by 2020, and e-learring has
become even more important than ever with our leading on-beoarding programme adapted for cur onfine learning
environment. Our well-astablished mentor/mentee programme has contnued, giving employees new opportunities
to develop. learn new skills and progress their careers at FirstPort We also continued 1o support our employess
to pursue relevant professional qualifications. particularly with the inshtute of Residential Property Management
{IRPM)




DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT- CEO STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

We weicomed the fifth annual intake of our successful graduate scheme in September 2020, giving seven
graduates the opportunity to become residential property managers at the end of their 12-month programme Each
graduate is given an executive mentor, providing invaluable senior support and guidance as they embark on their
cargers. Despite COVID-19. we were proud 10 welcome a similar size graduate cohort 16 normal and while the
scheme had to be adapted to facilitate increased hame working, the graduates are still performing wellin their
placements.

Financial and operational performance

FirstPort's 2020 results have been pleasing especially in a year that brought unprecedented challenges for the UK
and Global economies We have seen a steady and resilient performance with a smalif improvement financially
year on year based on adjusted EBITDA, put what has made me exceplianally proud. is the manner in which wa
managed operationally. the dedication our teams demonstrated to customers and clients. and the minimal
disruption craated in service through their commntment  We had strict guidelines to follow. our customer base has
been very understanding and in return we built strong relationships that helped us emerge more agile. more
energetic and more customer focused than ever before

Qur sector has seen challenges additional to COVID-19 that impacled normal business gperations  These
challenges encompass areas such as the new building safety regime. the slow-down in the hausing market in
earlier 2020 and the requirement of an EWS1 farm for leaseholders selling or re-marigaging their homes
However, our scale and financiat dynamics helped us invest in areas that needed the additional resource and
flexibilty in areas that expenenced temporary downturns  The lessons learnt fram 2020 have been posiive for the
business and the agility created in our gperations should help us pursue future growth opportumtes  Our balance
sheet remains in a slrang position and our fiquidity has performed as expected and remams positive for the
foreseeable future We understand we are fortunate to have such positive dynamics and explain more datal on
our financial performance on page 8

Social Responsibility
Ethical standards and principles

Ethics and transparency are integratl to how we do business, and the cornerstones of our corporate principles We
have strong corparate policies and safeguards n place, and a track record of abiding by and promoting high ethical
standards All our employees are responsiblie for adhering to our business practices, which follow both the letter
and the spirit of the law, as well as our Code of Conduct that refiects the tughest standards of corporate and
individual behaviour

Centrepoint

We recogmse and take senously our responsibiiily to positively mmpact the quality of fife of our emplayees, their
families, and the wider communities in which we operate  Following an employee vote in 2018, Centrepoint. a
leading youth homelessness charity, was selected as our corporate chanty partner. Since our partnership began in
December 2018. FustPort has raised more than £91.000 for Centrepoint
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Qutfock

The alignment of increased customer empowerment higher safety and professional standards, the prospect of
connecied technotogy and a culture of caning for people’s home environments, creates unigug opportunities
Backed by a financial resilience that withstocd the global economic challenges of 2020. means we remain pesitive
about the prospects ahead

Nige! Howell
Director
30 Aprit 2021
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Group financial performance

2020 2019 Change
£'000 £'000 %
Revenue 66 786 60814 10%
Adjusted EBITDA 13.484 12.803 5%

Revenue and adjusted EGITDA for the 2019 year has bean taken from the 2019 Kmght Square Holdings Limited
Group financial statements (continung operations only as this relates to FirstPort} to allow far a 12 montfr
comparstive analysis

The 2020 year has been unlike any other due to the unprecedented COVID-19 globat pandemic  Sacial and
economic lockdowns along with restrictions for much of the year have led 1o uncertainties for most businesses
across the UK and arcund the world  The impact of such events has gone beyond financtai results, so the focus
was to maintain stability and support the various stakeholders of our business. Dunng this period, the Group
benefited from its resilient characteristics with revenue streams and adjusted EBITDA largely stable compared to
nrior year. Soms discrebonary cost reductions have been put in place to help soften the impact of market effected
areas and we did carry out some restructuring to help us emerge leaner and more agile for the future  The Group
remained cash generative in these challenging conditions with & very stable batance sheet and hquithty profile

The change in the economic cimate also enabled management to conduct an in-depth review of the businesses
cost base and its resources to ensure # remains relevant to the requirements of both the current and future UK
environment The result of the review re-shaped the Groups fixed cos! base with fewer paper transactions
cccurnng. a reduced office footpnnt and a flexible ‘new way of working’ for its employees. These changes have
meant permanent efficiencies are now in place and more benefits will be denved in the following year  More
impartantly. the agile approach will mean an enhanced level of service for our customers whsch will only iImprove
further when our new systems roll out in 2021

Health and safety continue tc be the Group's top pricnty. and changes to regulstion required the Graoup to invest
signsficantly in specific areas to help manage the increased complexity  Such changes include the Building Safety
Fund. Waking Watch Fund and External Wail System (EVWST) processes Ve understand that legislative changes
have caused concern for our custemers and chients, and our investment has been made to help equip the business
reduce such concerns as bes! as we can

Revenue

Group revenues for 2020 were £66 8m. showing an increase of 10% on prior year (2019 £60 8m) Growth came
from acguisitions. with Mainstay trading for three and a half months and Chamonix for ore  In addition to building
on the cose base of FwstPort, Mainstay provided new revenue streams in the commercial and asset management
space as well as an expanded client base This provides a great platform to build on these new products and
extend our reach across the property market  Organic growth was evident in the underlying business when the
impact of COVID-12 is removed. COVID-19 impacted areas were largely the varable revenue streams that
carreiate to market conditsons, and we expect these to iargely return in 20214

The growth can be clearly seen from the units under management, increasing to 290 000 in the year from 186,000
e 2018 Mobilisations performed especially well given the closures that fook place. and acquisitions added 92.000
units which came onine duning the fast quarter of the year  The full year revenue impact of the acquired unis wili
be seen in 2021, The racerd oeder book of 86.000 units as at December 2020 further demonstrates the long-term
health of the business. with record organic wins of 17,000 units in the year

Adjusted EBITDA

The Group's adjusted EBITRA for 2020 was £13 5m. representing an annuat increase of 8% from £12 8m in 2019
Acquisitive growth has been the main contributor, justifying additonat Investment made in thss area with the
acquisition of Mainstay and Chamonix, which brought a broader skill set across the Group in addition to increased
adjusted EBITDA.

Adiusted EBITDA exclugdes interest expense, taxation. depreciation. amortisation. loss on dispasal of assets
exceptional items & share based payments
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Exceptional items and loss before taxation

Exceptional tems of £2.8m n 2020 are one-off In nature and mainly relate to the inlegration of acquisitions along
with restructuring costs following a management review of the business  After exceptional items depreciation,
amorbsation, and interest gcharges explained helow, the Group incurred a loss hefore taxation of £13 4m (four-
manth trading period ending 2019, £6 7m)

Interest

The interest charge for year was £11 7m (2019 £3.4m). made up of £6 1m (2019 £1 8m) interest on bank foans
and another £5 8m (2019 £16m) of interest on sharehalder lnans  The interest charge represents a full year m
comparison o a four-month trading penicd in 2018 hence the increase However. the Group has also Increased
borrowing levels during 2020 to suppert growth  The sharehclder loan interest was not payable in 2020 as it
accrues on an annual basis

Taxation

The tax charge in the year of £0 6m reflects the tax impact of non-tax-deductible expenses of £2 2m and effect of
tax rate changes of £1 2m  The deferred tax hability balance of £15 1m marnly represents the deferred tax Liabihty
arisen from the acquisition of Knight Square Holdings Group in 2019 and the acquisitions of Mamnstay and
Chamanix in 2020
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT - FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Group financial position
Intangible assets

As at 31 December 2020 total intangible assets balance was £163 3m (2019 £119.0m). consisting of £72 Om in
goodwill (2019 £51 2m). £67 5m in customer relationships (2019, £54 8m), £10 3m i brands (2019 £7.5m) and
£13.8mn sofiware costs (2019: £5 5m)  Software costs relate to intellectual property created from the digital
transformation program which is due to be rolled outin 2021 The increase in goodwitl, customer contracts and
brand resuited from the acquisitions Mainstay's customer contracts were valued at £11 6m, brands at £3 2m and
goodwill at £17 2m as at the date of acquisition Chamenix had customer contracts valued at £7 3m, brands at
£0 5m and goodwill at £6 Sm

Net liabilities position

The Group's net iabilities were £19.6m {2019 £5.6m), refieching the loss after tax in the year and an increase 1n
net current habilifies shown below.

Current assets and liabilities

The net current habiliies are £7 9m (2019 £3 7m). dnven by contractual relationships where fees are collecled in
advance, and the utihsatcen of the Gavernment VAT deferment scheme  These will unwind largely in the 2021
financial year

Borrowings and cash

The Group increased 1ts loan facilies during 2620 to a £105 2m (2019 £81.7m) facility with NatWest and
Pemberon The increase in faclities continues 1o be aligned within the Group's capacity and servicing
capabilities.

As al 31 December 2020. the total debt held was £87.7m (2019 £64 2m) with a cash balance of £7 6m (2019
£4.8m) which resulted in net debt of £90.1m (2019 £59 6m)} The Group has one class of sharehaolder loan note
in 1ssue at the balance sheet date, with a principal of £61 4m (2019 £51 Cm) and accrued interest of £7 2m (2019
£1.6m) Sharehoider loan notes of £10.4m were 1ssued In the year Issue of ardinary shares resulted in proceeds
of £0.1m in the year

Cash flow and covenants

Cash balances are managed i ine with financing and working capital requirements of the Group's trading
businesses The Group ensures that its suppliers are paid i a timely manner and are in-ine with agreed
contractual terms  The Group enjoyed a good stable liquidity profile in 2020 thus enabling if to continue to service
i1s debts and suppléers in a normal manner Cash generated from its aperations for 2020 was £12 2m (2019
outflow £11 5m) which 1s another strong sign of stability tn an uncertain year for the UK economy

The total cash outflow for investing activities was £45 8m (2019 £34 1m) representing the consideration paid on
the acquisitions of Mainstay and Chamonix along with the continued investment in the Group's digital
transformation program. Cash inflow from finanging actvities in the Graup was £36 7m (2019 £50.5m) reflecting
an increase in borrowings and shareholder loans

As a Group we continue to be diligent in morutoring banking covenants which are forecasted monthly and tested
each quarter. We have comforlably exceeded alt covenant requirements for the quarters ended, including 31
December 202C
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Group's principal nsks and uncertainiies are set cut In the table below together with thev potential impact on

ouf business and the measures we take to manage and mitigate them

Risk

Risk Description

Mitigation

Health and safety
{"H&3")

The rnsk of breaches of H&S standards
resuibing 1n injuries. environmental damage
or physicai damage to property leading to
financial penalties reputational damage
and delays to site related activities

Dedicated H&S team under the guidance of
skilled H&S Director

Robust H&S culture with safety risk register

Contract retention

The risk assomated to the dependency an
key clent/customer contracts and the loss
of contracts

Delivery of high-quality cusiomer service
under standardised ‘four pilfars’ approach
Mamtaiming a regular dalogue with
individual and business customers
Commitment to the principles set cut In s
Customer Charter

Reputation

The nsk of damage to brand name or
reputation either through our pecple, our
behaviors, or third parties acting on our
behalf

impravement in customer service and clear
compiaints processes reduce the nsk of
Issues escalating

Meonuttaning and responding to custormer
feedback on employees and thurd parly
supplier services

Policies and whistle-blower hotline

Econamic nisks angd
changes «n market

Fallure 1o respond  effectively  to
developments in the broader economy.

Resilignt UK based business model
Significant experence and expertise in

dynamics competition and other market or fiscal chosen markets
dynarmucs, ncluding Brexit and the COVID-[ «  Frequent review of competitian
19 pandemic *  Market insight and inteligence
Financial Faifure to maintain appropnate financiall » Experienced finance team
management contrals throughout the business, ncluding] «  Financial control environment
the management of debt covenants. creditl o Ciose monttoring of financial performance
nsk fraud sk and taxation debt covenants and credit nsk by sermior
management
* Board oversight of financial performance
Systems The risk associated with the non- delivery{ * Investment in appropriate technology and

dependence and
business continuity

and future-proofing of our technology.
including the potential impact of business
interrupfion through systems and facilities

staff

IT governance structure

IT resilience and disaster recovery plans
designed to restore service

Business continuily plan for each business
operational office

Cyber securty accreditation
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Risk Risk Description Mitigation
Legal and reguiatory The risk of faling to comply with| ¢ Employment of qualified advisors both
compliance refevant  laws,  regulations  and internaily and externally wha report regutarly
Standards including AML. CCO, to the Board about all significant legislative
Gender Pay Reporting and Modern changes in the UK
Stavery + Development of internal polhcies and
procedures to ensure adequate capture of|
tegal and reguiatory compliance 1ssues
*  Maintenance of risk register for ali current
regulatory issues
+  Training programmes for staff
People Risk The risk that we fal to attract and| ® HR strategy encompassing recrutment,

retain high calibre empioyees in order
to deliver on all aspects of our strategy

reward, retenton, talent development and
performance management

Successwon planning for middle and senior
management

Regular review of top talent n  the
organisation regardless of level by all
executive members

Data protection ang
privacy rigk

The risk of the loss or misuse of
customer or empioyee data

Information security policies encompassing
data protection

Investment in appropnate lechnology and
staff

General data prolection regulation {GDFPR)
steenng committee

Breach register and |CO registration
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Board and Board Committees
Governance
Our Group 15 privately owned and as of 31 December 2020 had a board comprising of six directors

Qur Chairman, P J Lester, has responsibidity for the Board and N Howell Chief Executive Officer. executes the
Group's strategy and commercial objectives and implements the decisions of the Board.

Operation of the Board

Our Board meets at least ten imes each year to review the Group's strategy and performance Execulive
management are reguiarly invited to attend Board meetings. as appropriate Heatlth and safety performance, along
with key risks and obligations are reviewed and considered at our Board meetings

Committees of the Board
Audit Committee

Our Group's Audit Committee is made up of three non-executive directors comprised of P J Lester (Chair -
independent). T Swales {shareholder representative), and | Boman-Flavell (sharechaolder representative) The Audit
Commiliee s scheduled to meet at i@ast twice a year to review our resuits and internal controls

Qur external auditors are alsc invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings to repert their findings

Remuneration Committee

We have a Group Remuneration Committee made up of three non-Executive directors - P J Lester {Chair} T
Swates. and | Boman-Flave!l The Committee meets at least twice a year to review Execulive Director objectives,
pay rises bonuses and discuss pay rates. as required

internal control and risk management

Qur approach to internal controf is delivered through senior management oversight via a dedicated internal
governance and compliance team  The two responsible Executive Directors hold monthly internal control meetings
with the governance team based on the Board's agreed nsk framework. mitigating strategies. and the iatest slatus
of the risks  Any changes or matters of concern are reported fo the full Board As a Group we also maintain and
monitor a set of detailed policy documents across ali areas of our operations. including health and safety
procurament. finance, and governance (including competttion and bribery) We use the support of external experts
to conduct ad hec reviews of specific areas of the business that the Board considers may present significant nsk

independent auditors

Our auditars, PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP. have indicated therr willingness to continue in office and a resolution
for thewr re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Financia! risk management

The Group's operations expose us to a vanety of financial risks that include the effects of credit, liquidity, cashfiow
and interest rate risk There are robust controls in place to limit any adverse impact on cur Group's performance by
mondoring potential financial nsks  Given the business’ size, the Directors have not delegated the responsibifity of
manitoring inancial risk management to a sub-committee of the Board

Our Group's exposure to inferest rate nsk was assessed by management and considered low. We have a large base
of UK residential and commercial custamers. which reduces the concentration of credit risk. Whare we transact with
corporate cuslomers. our credd control teams follow strict processes for managing and mitigating the risk of nan-
payment of charges

The Group has cash management and forecasting processes in piace to manage cashflow and gquidity within our
existing financing

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

We have been working with the Carbon Trust since 2018. whose mission is to help ofganisations accelerate the
delivery of a sustainable. iow carbon economy. The Carbon Trust is helping us review our carbon fgotprint and have
granted us 1SQ 14001.3 This demonstrates the Group s on-going cammitment to reduce our environmental impact.
wilh further plans already in place to build on the positive work done in 2020

We measured our lotal greenhouse gas emissions across the five FirstPort offices, directly and indirectly. to cover a
12-month perod between 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 This ensured comphance with the UK
Government's Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) regime apphicable to alt farge businesses with a
reporting penod startng after 1 Apnl 2019

FirstPort's enargy use and associated GHG emissions from efectncity and fuet across our five UK offices can be
found in the table below. along with scope calculations aligned to the Graenhouse Gas Protocol Within this protocol.
we have chosen an operatrional cantral approach and have used the UK government emussion factors for 2020 for all
our emission SOUrces

2020 Energy usage 2020 Emissions
{kWh} (kgCO2e}
Electricity (scope 2) 858.307 200.106
Natural gas [scope 1) 121,033 32.189
Tranrsport fuels - company vehicles {(scope 1) B4 479 20,391
Transport fuels - grey fleet (scope 3) 1.920,671 475,197
2,984,490 728,883
. Emission Factor L.
Vehicle Type Fuel Type Kg CO2/kWh Energy Use KWh Emissions (kgC0O2)
Fleet Cars Diesel 001116 1.259 14
Fleet Cars Petrol 000765 83.220 637
Grey Fleet Cars” Diesel 001116 860.335 10.717
Grey Fleet Cars” Petrot 0.00765 860 335 7.347

*‘Nate A 50 50 Petrol.Diesel split was used

Vehicle emissions ware oniy measured in 2020 and not in 2018
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2019 Energy usage

2019 Emissions

(kWh) (kgC02e)
Electricity (scope 2) 841 298 215,035
Natural gas (scope 1} 242,210 44 530
Transpait fuels - company vehicles (scope 1) 614,734 150 485
Transport fuels - grey fleet (scope 3) 3,145 530 748,066
4,843,770 1,158,116

2020 carbon emission intensity

Benchmark value
Intenstty henchmark (FTE staff members)
Carben emissions intensity per staff member (kgCQO2e/FTE) 1 069

2019 carbon emission intensity

Benchmark value
Intensity benchmark {FTE staff members}
Carbon emissions intensity per staff member (kgCO2e/FTE) 812

As in 2019, refrigeration emssions for 2020 are 0 so have been omitted.

Emissions intensity
{kgCO2e/staff FTE)
682

Emissions intensity
{tkgCO2e/staff FTE)
1426

We have continued cur eccmmitment to reducing cur business' carbon footpnnt. with alt measures reducing
from 2019 Specific actions taken in 2020 include LED and automated lighting 1n our office spaces, moving
to a 'greener energy. evaluation of renewable energy technologies, reducing building supply capacity and

improving overall awareness on climate change We strive to further embed our environmental. social. and

corporate responsibilities inta cur culture and expect improvements to extend mnto 2021
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Statement on the Directors' performance of their statutory duties in accordance with 5172 (1) Companies
Act 2006 {continued)

The Directors of our Group act in accordance with a set of general duties. which are detaiied w1 the UK Companies
Act 2006 These include a duty ta promote the success of the Graup for the bemefit of its members as a whole and
to consider {amongst other matiers)

*  The likely consequences of any dectsion in the long term,

«  Theinterests of the Group's empicyees.

+ The need to foster the Group's business refationships with suppliers, customers and athers,

*  The impact of the Group's operations on the community and the environment;

*  The desirability of the Groug maintaining a regutation for high standards of business conducl. and
*  The need to act fairly as between members of the Group

Qur Directors are briefed annually on ther duties and they can access professional advice either through the
Group or. an independent pravider. as required

The Board has reviewed their current approach 10 corperate governance and decision makiig, engagement with
stakehaiders and their impact on the enwromment  How the Boeard fuifils its duties under Section 172 (1} 1s
summansed as follows

Decision-making

The Board meets monthly with our senior executive managemeant feam to discuss key 1ssues and to make sure that
siralegic plans are followed Key actiohs are taken and coimmurncated to the sersor management team regularly
algng vath the wader business to ensure transparency and to maintain focus on the business’ key sirategic goals A
monthly Business Buzz wideo 1s dislibuted on the Groug s internal platform where the Chief Executive Officer and
other key Senior Managers tascade important messages to all empioyees

The Board underiakes an n-depth review of the Group's sirategy annually. based on a 5-year business plan The
approved plan then forms the strategic drection of the business vath amendments made as and when necessary
during the reviews The plan and strategy form the basis for financial budgets. resource plans and mvastment
denisions. When making decisions relating to the business plan and future strategy. the Board takes into
consideration a vanety of matters including the intesest of vanous stakeholders the consequences of its decisions
it the fong-term and its reputation. For more information on our strafegic deveiopments in 2020 see pages 2 - 8

The Board also maintains oversight of our perfarmance and ensures that our management 1s acling in accordance
with our strategy and plan. They also denlify. evaluate. manage and mitigate any risks we face Details of these
are cavered on pages 12 and 13

Principal decisions

£n 25 March 2020, the UK Government announiced a national lockdown in response lo the carona virus (COVID-
19) pangenuc  The lockdown included a stay-at-home order and the banned non-essential ravel  The Board
considered the lockdown fules and guidance and determined that the majority of is workforce can work remotely
Further funding was made available to the investment in | T equipment to aid belter remote working The Board
approved flexible working for colleagues that could work from home and ensured essental (ravel documentation be
made availabie for colleagues that were required to travel

The Group has invested in the development of new technologies e iImprove the service delivery across the enlire
crgarigation The Board cansiders innovation of better technolagies ta be a key priarty where it can enlance the
service detivery of our operational teams and streamiine processes (o make them maere efficient As a result. the
Beard approved further investment in its digital programme

Punng the year. apportunities to acquire new businesses into the Group have been presented to the Board The
Board takes mio consideration ther director s duties notably therr duty to promate the success of the busiress,
when evaluating acguistion opportunities Other key considerations are factored in such as determining whether
new opporiunities can provide comphmentary growth to the Group's existing service offerings
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Qur People

Our employees are cantral Lo the long-term success of the Group and as such the board ensures it has means of
engaging to understand their views and interesls  During the COVID-19 pandemic to protect our employees and
comply with nationat faw, the Group made the decision ta aliow the ma)ority of its workforce to work from home and
provided further investment in remote working techaclogies. Our main offices were assessed by our Heaith &
Safety team and made availabie and comphiant with sooial distancing faules for those employees who required
access The Group intends to maintain flexibiiity with remote working to aliow colleagues to choose how they wish
te work

A section dedicated o Our Peopie 1s inctuded in the monthly Board report to ensure the Board 1s regularly updated
on key employee matlers  Core lopics in the report for Beard consigeration include employee refations absences
and empioyee lurnover, traning and deveiopment, communicalions. employee profiles. and Glassdoor ratings  For
2020 some key infarmation around furlough and COVID-19 absences was also included to assess the overall
impact of the pandemic toc employees  This provides the Board with regular updates and trends on key peopie
melrics and gives comfort that the people strateqy 15 being well receved both mternally and externatiy

During the COVID-19 pandemic. to prolect our employees and comply vith national law. the Group made the
decision o allow the majanty of its workforce 1o work from home and provided further mvestment in remote working
technologies Cur main offices were assessed by our Health & Safely team and made aval'able and comphant with
soctal distancing rutes for those employees who required access Following employee surveys heid in 2020 that
yielded a favourable view towards long term flexible working. the Board decided to reduce office space and
maintain the new way of workings post COVID-19

Development of new lechnologies continued throughout 2020 and the roll cut of this in 2021 will have a significant
impact to employees. both m terms of advanced operational systems and new ways of working Regular
communications from the CEQ have taken place in recent years o keep employees updated vath plans and
progress with Q&A sessions held to ensure two-way feedback that can be circuated to the Board  An external
company. Storytellers, was also engaged so that senior managers could heip bring to fife the FirstPont way in an
engaging and interaclive manner for employges These sessions were held far all team members and feedback
given back to the Board wa senior leadership meetings  Roll out pians have been determined by employee
feedback on business readiness, and the Board not wanbng 1o put undue strain en the workforce

M&A opportunities are generaily confidential by nature, however the Board gains assurance of these decisions from
an employee perspective through a senior due dibgence team that are close fo the operatiens An assessment on
culture and long term fit of any potenbial M&A opportunities is alse carned out to gain comfort no major conflicts wilt
arise. Following a detailed due ditigence process a presentation and report is subrmitted to the Boarg summarising
findings. allowing the Board to make an inlormed decision based on what is best for both Group and its employees

The Group aims to ensure everyone is treated fairly and eguitably and there are arrangements in place to prevent
discnmination inthe workplace A dedicated HR leam is avaiiable lo suppert empioyses and there s a dedicated
whistieblowing hathine if an employee wishes to raise a serious matter, ttws can be done anonymausly. Any matiers
ansing fram any whistleblowing is recorded in our whistleblowing register and reviewed by the Risk & Governance
Committee, a sub-committee of the Executive Management Board.

The Group understands the imporiance of wellbeing. especially during this unprecedented year. All of our
employees have access to our Employee Assistance Programme. which is managed by an independent third party,
as wel! as mternal colleagues trained as Mental Heaith First Aiders  During COVID-19. regular communications
and additional support have been provided to employees across the business. from sharing information on available
mental health resources to tips for home-schaooling parents

Qur e-learming platform includes tramning moduies designed 1o make sure we athct in a lawful and compliant way
while conducting day to day dufies, this includes data privacy. anti-bribery and anti-money jaundenng, modern
slavery and health and safely legisiation Far high risk topics, employees are required to complete this tramning
annualty To suppart employee growth online training modules also cover a range of development topics. from
becoming a great leader through to how 1o mentar and coach others

Please refer 10 pages € and 7 far more informaton about our employees and our people management appreach
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Community and environment

We are committed to reducing owr carbon footprint and environmental impact and are reviewing our CO2
emissiens annually, In 2020, the Carbon Trust evaluated our carbon footprint and validated the carbon reporting
figures under ISO 14064-3.

As a business we also recognise the importance of contributing to wider socety  During 2020, we continued to
support a national youth homelessness charity. Centrepoi - The charity provides homeless young people with
accommodation, heaith support and life skills in order to get them back snte education. traiming. and employment

Corporate governance and reputation of high standards of business conduct

In 2020, we worked with external advisors to carry out @ gap analysis of our overall corporate governance
structure inciuding environmental and social governance The Wates Corporate Governance Principles (the
‘Wates Principles”) for large private companies have been used to benchmark the Group's gavernance structure
The Board will continue to work tawartis improving its corporate governance practices in line with the Wafes
Principles and drive to meet these stapdards.

Qur purpose and our operating model provide the key elements of how the Group mamtains a reputation for high
standards of business conduct

Further details are provided on page 7 and page 14

Stakehoider engagement

Our Board ensures that positive stakeholder engagement exists al all levels across the business. and that
decisions put cusiomers first However with a wide stakeholder base that includes customers. clents, supplers,
employees. and sacely more widely, decisions aiso take all of these audiences nto account

The Board will sometimes engage directly with key stakehoiders on certain issues. but the size and distribution of
our stakeholders and our Group means that stakeholder engagement often takes place at an operational level

Senior management hold monthly meetings with key clients to review our services in their respective portfolios
This enabies us to ightight any issues raised by our clients and take action transparently  The Board s regularly
updated by senior management on the progress of any matters raised in the client engagement meetings

The Board considers and discusses information from across the organisation o help it understand the impact of
the Group's operations and the interests and views of key stakeholders It also reviews sirategy. financial and
operational performance. as well as key risks and regulatory comphance This information is provided to the
Board through reporis sent in advance of each Board meeting and via presentations

The Board understands the importance of developing and maintaining good refationship with the Group's supply
chain, Due to the nalure of the senvices we offer we have a diverse ma of large national suppliers and local
suppliers Whilst engagement with our suppliers mainly takes place at an operational level through our
centralised procurement team any deveiopments which could materially :mpact the arganisation are reported
back ta the Board The Board will also review and approve key matenal contracts with s supply chain

Customer research (s conducted with both residential customers and resident management company directors o
ensure the business understands what's important to these stakehoiders

The business continues to proactively engage with key stakeholders on the building and fire safety chalienges
facing leasenhotders across the country, including engaging with Government 1o try and find praclical solutions for
homeowners. as well as working with ¢lignts. suppliers and customers to held remediate buildings |n the light of
the unprecedented, challenging citcumstances these cuslomers are facing we are pleased to have announced in
early 2021 a no-profit pledge committing to only recaver our costs on our werk supporting customers whose
bulldings are being remediated via the Government s non-ACM cladding replacement fund
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Engagement in action

QOver the year we hetd
* Internal siaff committee meetings and working with third party experts to discuss health and safety and the
ways It can be improved across both the business and the developments in our care  The findings were
presented back to the Board who approved the formation of a new building safety team to deal with
developments that fall under the new regutatory requirements

*  Apinformal forum to discuss envirenmental and sustanabilty iniatives  This led to the setup of an ESG
committee made up of employees in relevant departments. Updates to the Board are provided through the
Board report with approval sought where appropriate

* Regular engagement between our executive members and all employees through recorded and live videos.
an internal social media system and a wirtual company conference accessible for ali empioyees to view and
provide feedback ocn  The Board approved the first virtual conference in 2020 which was well recewved and
prowided a great feedback loop to capture employee sentiment especially in such unprecedented times

* A syrvey with our employees around flexible working patterns and engaged with specific office based staff
that were impacted by our reduced office foot-pnnt. to ensure the majority were supportive of the measures
we underteok along with the future plans of therr working environment The clear preference from employses
was to maintain a flexible approach therefore measures to enatle this were appraved by the Board

¢ Monthly meetings with key clients with thewr progress reported back to the executive management team and
Board of Directors  The meetings have allowed our service mode! and proposition to evolve with our
customer s needs and continue to improve our service offering in the market

* Meetings with key suppliers to review service levels to ensure good sarvice delivery perfarmance durning the
COVID-19 natenal leckdown These provided better understanding for suppliers around our business and
goals, enabling a mutually beneficial sustainable relationship They also gave supphers the opportunity to
showcase where else they may be atle to support us  Key updates were provided in Board meetings

* Customer interviews conducted by a specialist market research agency to shape customer service delivery
and improvements The interview helped reshape some of the decision-making processes in our Digital
platform to ensure we cater for customer requirements  Digilal was a hot Board topic throughout 2021

Shareholders

Our majority shareholder appointed two Non-executive directors o the Board. who contribute Lo the slrategic
direchan of the Group

QOuda Saleh
Director
30 Aprit 2021
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidaled financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group s the provision of residential property management and related services within
the UK. and that of the company is invesiment management Activites in its trading business FirstPost, has been
explained in the Strategic Report on page 2

Directars

The directors wha held office during the year and up to the date of sighature of the financial statements were as
follows

P J Lester {appointed on 16 January 2020)

N Howell

O Sateh

T A Swales

| G Boman-Flaveli {appomted on 13 February 2020)
D K Young {appointed on 26 November 2020)
S Leusch (resigned on 13 February 2020)

Directors’ insurance

The group mamntans insurance pohcies on behalf of all the directors against liability ansing from negligence,
breach of duty and breach of trust in relation ta the group Ttus 1s a quahifying third party indemmily provision made
for the benefit of its directors duning the year These prowsrans remam in force at the reporting date

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the consohdated profit and kss account on page 27 No ordinary dividends
were paid The directors do not recommend payment of a further dividend

Employees

Informatian on employees is included in the Strategic Report on pages 6 and 7 Further infermation on employee
engagement is included in the s172 (1} statement in the Strategic Report on page 18

Disabled persons

Infermation on disabled persons s incluced in the Strategic Report on pages 6 and 7

Stakeholder engagement and principal decisions

Infarmation on stakeholder engagement and prncipal decisions s included in the 172 (1) statement in the
Strategic Report on page 17 and pages 19 and 20.

Future developments

The future developments of the business are discussed in the Strategic Report on page 8
Financial risk management

information an financial rsk management 15 included in the Strategic Report an page 15
Going Concern

Infarmation on going concern is included in note 1 4 on page 35
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparnng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation

Company law requires the diracloms to prepae fingncial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards. comprising FRS 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland”. and apphcable law).

Under company law. directors must not approve the financia! statements uniess they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affars of the group and company and of the profit or ioss of the group for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to

*  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentiy,

* stale whether apphicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards compnsing FRS 102, have been followed.
subject to any maternial departures disclosed and explained n the financiat statements,

*  make judgements and acceunting estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it 1s inapprogriate 1o presume that the
group and company will continue 1n business

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities

The direclors are respansible for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the

group's and company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and company and enable them {o ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008

Directors' confirmations

In the case of each director m office at the date the directors” report 1s approved

* so far as the direclor 1s aware there 15 no relevant audit infermation of which the group's and company's
auditors are unaware. and

* they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director 1n order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to estabbsh that the group's and company's auditors are aware of that
information

QOuda Saleh
Director
30 Aprit 2021
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TC THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qpinion
tn our opinion Drive Topeco Limited's group financiat statements and company financial statements (the "financial
statements”’)

. give a true and far view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and
of the group's loss and the group's cash lows for the year then ended
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reperting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. and applicable law), and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements. included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Anaual
Report’j. which compnse consoiidated and company balance sheet as at 31 December 2020. the consolidated
profit and loss account and consolidated statement of comprehensive income. the consolidatad cash fiow
statement. and the consohdated and company statements of changes in equity for the yaar then ended. and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} { 1SAs (UK) } and apglhcable
law Qur responsibilites under ISAs {UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibidiies for the audit of the
financial statements section af our repart We believe that the audt evidence we have obtained s sufficient and
apgropriate to provide a basis for owr opinton

Independence

We rentained independent of the graup in accordance with the ethicat requirements that are refevant to our auds of
the financial statements m the UK. which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard. and we have fuffilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accardance with these requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern
QOur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and the company's ability 10 continue to adopt the going
¢oncern basis of accounting included

+  Auditing the mtegrity of the underlying formulas and caiculations within the going concern model:
+  Assessing the appropriateness of the cash flow forecasts in the context of the Group's 2020 financial
performance and the acquisitions made in the year, and evaluating the separate downside scenario.

* Evaluating the key assumptions in the forecasts (which were consistent with the forecasts used to assess
goodwil)

¢ Testing the forecast revenue ang EBITDA figures with reference to the additional amaunts contributed by the
acquisitions made assumed efficiencies from the acquisitions and other projects and assumptans made in
relation to price and churn.

« Comparnng the prior year forecasts against current year actual perfarmance to assess management's ability
to farecast accurately. particularly in the period before Covid-18 but also considenng the performance of the
Group since the first iockdown on 23 March 2020 and

*  Obtaning and reperforming the Group's forecast covenant comphance calculatigns ncluding sensitising the
prafits and cash flows as applicable for each covenant to assess the potential impact of our downside
sensilivifies on covenant comgphance
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iINDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Based on the work we have performed. we have not dentfied any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that. indwidually or collectively. may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’'s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the gowng concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

However because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the
group’s and company's abilty te continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the respansibilities of the directors with respect lo going concern are descnbed in the
retevant sectians of this report

Reporting on other information

The ather information compnises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon The directors are responsible for the other information Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and. accordingly, we do not express an audst opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise exglicilly stated in this repart, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other informat:on and. in
doing sa. consider whether the other information is matenally mconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained i the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misslated. tf we wdentify an apparent
matenal inconsistency or matenal misstatement. we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
15 a matenal misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information If based
on the work we have performed. we cenclude that there is @ matenal misstatement of this other information. we
are required to report that fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report. we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Compames Act 2006 have been included

Based on the responsibiities descnbed above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit 1SAs (UK)
require us also to repert certain opinions and malters as described below

Strategic Report and Direcfors’ Report

In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit the infarmation given in the Strategic
Report and Drrectors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 1s consistent with the financial statements and
nas been prepared in accordance with apphcable legal requirements

In light of the knowiedge and understanding of the group and company and therr environmenl obtained in the
course of the audit. we did not Wentify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibiities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial stalements. the
directers are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
framework and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and farr view The directors are also responsible for such
internal control as they determine 1s necessary lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstaternent. whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the direclors are responsible fer assessing the group's and the company's
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the
qoing concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the group or the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but ta do so.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial stalements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditors' repert that includes our opinian
Reasonabie assurance is a gh level of assurance. bul s not a guaraniee that an audit conductied in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect @ material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arse from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected (o influence
the ‘economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregutanties inctuding fraud are instances of non-comphance with laws and regulations We design procedures m
line with our responsibiites. outiined above. to detect matenatl misstatements in respect of wreguiartes, including
fraud The extent to which our peocedures are capable of detecting wregulanties. including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we wdentified that he principat fisks of non-compliance with
laws and reguiations related o breaches of employment laws, health and safety regulations, data protection. tax
legislation and the International stock exchange listing rules . and we considered the extent to which non-
comphance might have a matenal effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations
that have a diract wapact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006 We evaluated
management's incentives and opporiunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk
of overnde of controls). and determuned that the principal nsks were related to the posting of mappropriate journal
entries and management bias in accounting judgments and estimates to enhance EBITDA Audit procedures
performed included

*»  Discussions with management mcluding consideration of known ar suspected instances of non-compiiance
wih laws and regulations and fraud,

* Challenging assumptions made by management i relation to areas of judgment and significant accounting
estimates. including the classification of cosls as exceptional. the capitalisation aof Intangible assets and the
valuationy of identified intangibles arsing from the acquisition accounting for the two acquisitions made within
the year

* Testing journal entries meeting set nisk critena, n particular any journal entries posted with unexpected
account combinations resulting 1IN a credit entry to revenue or cosl. journal entnes containing unusual words
and any journals posted by senior management:

» Incorporating elements of unpredictability into the audit procedures performed. in particular over supplier
bank details. and

¢ Review of board minutes throughout the year and legal costs incurred to understand if these are indicative of
any wider non-compliance or fraud matters

There are inherent imitations n the audit procedures descnbed abgove We are less lkely to become aware of
mnstances of non-compliance with laws and regulattons that are not closely reiated to events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements Also. the nsk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the 7isk of not detecting one resutting from errar as fraud may involve deliberate conceatment by for example.
forgery or ntentiona! misrepresentations. or through collusion

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC s website
at www frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

This reporl. including the opiniens. has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not. in giving
these opinions accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any cther person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may came save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing
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TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2008 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if in our opimen
* we have not received all the information and explanations we requie for cur audit, or

* adequaie accounting records have not been kept by the company. or returns adequate for our audit have
nat been received from branches not visited by us, or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. or

* the company financial statemeants are not in agreement with the accounting recards and returns.

We have no exceptions to repont ansing from this responsitubity

iane Walmsley (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

30 April 2021
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Turnover
Cost of saies

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses - exceptional tems

Other operating income

Operating loss

interest payable and similas expenses

Loss before taxation

Tax on lgss

Loss for the year / period

Note

13

15

Year ended
31 December 2020
£:000 £000
66.786
(2.824)
63.962
(63.543}
(2,784
(66.327)
6§72
(1.693)
(11.749)
(13.442)
(636}
(14.078)

7 month period ended
31 December 2018
£'000 £'600

19.401

19.401%

{19.516)
(2.123)

{21.639)

{2 238)

13.429)

{5.667)
{72)

{5.73%
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Loss for the financial year / period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive expense for the year / period

Total comprehensive expense for the year / pencd attributable to
- Owners of the parent

Total comprehensive expense for the year [ period

Year ended

31 December 2020

7 month period ended

31 December 2019

£'000 £000
(14 078) (5739)
{14.078) (5 739)
(14.078) {5.73%)
(14.078) (5.739;
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Debtars

investment properties heid for resale
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falting due within
one year

Net current habilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

Provision for liahilities
Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Cailled up share capital
Share premium account
Treasury shargs
Accumulated losses

Total equity

Note

16
17

20

22

23

25

28
28
28

2020
£000 £'000
163,338
2.781
166.119
8.871
187
7.585
16,643
(24.588)
(7,945}
158.174
(162.106)
(15,673)
(1G.605)
1
144
h
(19.749)
(19.605)

The notes on pages 34 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements

2019

£'000 £000

113 000

3.111

122 111
5343
187
4558
10,058
(13 746)

(3.688)

118.423

{113.915)

(10.153)

(5.645)

;

93

(5.739)

(5.645)

The financial statements on pages 27 to 74 were authonsed for 1ssue by the board of duectors and authonsed for

issue on 30 April 2021 and are signed on 1ts behalf by

Ouda Saleh
Director




DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital

Share premium account
Treasury shares

Share based payment reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

The company made a profit of £4k during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 nif)

Note

18

20

22

23

28
28
28
28

2020
£000 £000
162
162
318
5
323
{269}
54
216
218
1
144
h
58
4
216

2018
£'000

£'000

94

94

94

For the year ending 31 December 2020, the company was enttled t¢ exemprion umder section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 from presenting its individual profit and loss account

The notes on pages 34 la 74 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statements on pages 27 to 74 were authonsed for issue by the board of directors and authorised for

issue on 30 April 2021 and are signed on its behalf by

Quda Saleh
Director

Drive Topco Limited
Registered no. 1204301
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Calted up Share Treasury Accumulated Total
share premium shares losses equity
Note capital
£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 11 June 2019 -
Period ended 31 December 2049:
Loss for the period and total comprehensive expense
for the period
- (5.739) (5.739)
Total transaction with owners, recorded directly
to equity
Issue of shares 28 { 93 G4
Total contnbutions by ang disinbulions (o owners
t 93 04
Balance at 31 December 2019 1 93 5739 (5.645)
Year ended 31 December 2020:
Loss for the year and tolal comprehensive expense
for the year {14078y (14 078)
Total transaction with owners, recorded directly
to equity
Credil refating to equily-Settled share-based payments 14 - - 68 68
Issue of shares {27.075 of £0.01 ordinary shares} 28 - 43 - - 48
Issue of shares to EBT (2,000 of £0.01 ordinary shares) 28 - 3 3 -
Acquisition of shares by EBT 28 - 4) 4
Settlement of shares by EBT members 28 6 8
Total contributions hy ang distributions to owners
51 (1 68 118
Balance at 31 December 2020 1 144 4] (19 749) {19.605)

31




DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Catted up Share  Treasury Share Retained Total
share premium shares Based earnings equity
MNote capital Payment
Reserve

£900 £000 £000 £'600 £'000 £'000
Balance at 11 June 20192 - - R
Period ended 31 December 2015:
Results for the financial pencd - - - . . _
Total transaction with owners, recorded directly to
equity
{ssue of shares 28 1 93 - - 94
Tolal coninputions by and d:sinbutions to owners

1 93 - - G4
Balance at 31 December 2019 1 93 - - 94
Year ended 31 December 2020:
Profit for the year - - 4 4
Total transaction with ewners, recorded directly to
equity
Credit refating to equily-seted share-based payments 28 - - 63 - 58
Issue of shares {27 075 of £¢ 01 ordinary shares) 28 - 48 - - - 48
Issue of shares to EBT {2 000 of £0 01 ordwnary shares} 28 3 3 . -
Acquision of shares by EBT 28 (41 - (41
Settiement of shares by EBT members 28 6 - 6
Total contriautians by and distributions to owners
51 {1} 68 118

Balance at 31 Decermber 2020 1 144 n 88 4 218
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated / {used) in operations

Tax pad

Net cash generated / {(used) in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of subsidhares net of cash acquired
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of tangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of shares

Issue of sharehoider loans
Interest pad

Drawdown of bank facility

L.oan arrangement fees
Repayments under finance lease

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year / period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year / period

Cash and cash equivalents consists of.
Cash at bank ang in hand

Year ended
31 December 2020
Note £°000 £'000
36 12.214
(65)
12,149
3 (36 965)
(7.881)
(875)
{45.827)
51
10,395
(5.380)
33.500
(1.867)
36 699
3.027
4.558
7 685
7.585

7 month period ended
31 December 2019

£:000 £000
{11.528)
(282)

{11.810)
(31.262)
(2.399)
(424)

134.085)
94
51.036
(620)
{57)

50.453

4558

4,558

4,558
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

General information

Drive Topeo Limited {"the Company”), incorparated on 11 June 2019, and ds subsidiaries {together "the
Group") provides residential property management and related services, and safely and wellbeing services
within the United Kingdom The main business operates as FirstPort which is the largest residential property
managemant business in the UK with a core service offerng organised around six customer/market
segments Luxury, Large and Complex, Properly Services Estates Budd to Rent and Retirement In addition
to its core offerings. FirstPort also provides specialist independent retirement estate agency services.
insurance progucts, and resigdential letings.

The company 1s a private company lmited by shares and I1s incaorporated in the United Kingdom and
registered 1n England The address of s registered office s Queensway House 11 Queensway. New
Milton, Hampshire, UK BH25 5NR

Statement of compliance

The Group and mndividual financia! statements of Drive Topce Limited have been prepared i compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Iretand” { FRS 1027 and the
Companies Act 2006

Summary of significant aceounting policies

The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below The accounting policies have teen applied consistently other than where new policies have
been adopted

Basis of preparation

These consolidated and separate company financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis,
under the historical cost convention

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of cerain cntical accounting estimates. It atso
frequires management i exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group and Company's
accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexty. or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements. are disclosed in note 2
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.4

1.5

Accounting policies {continued)

Going concern

The Group manages Its day-to-day working capital requirements through its bank facilites The ability of the
Group to service its debt obligations is critical to the ongoing trading of the business and we have
considered the key factors that could have an impact on trading and whether an adverse change in these
factors could affect our abiity to meet our liabiliies The Group has a considerable number of on-going
management contracts in FrstPart. and accordingly the Group's forecasts and projections taking account of
reasanably possible changes in trading perfarmance. show that the Group should be able to operate within
the levat of its current faciities

As part of assessing the abilily to continue as a going concern, the Group has alse considered the engoing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and any related potental economic downturn on its business During this
assessment management conducted various scenario analysis with sufficient depth and duration.
considenng different levels of revenue reduction. working capital implications and mutigating actions
avallable to management In 2020 the impact of COVID-19 was felt in the Group's transactional revenue
lines which 15 rehant on the property market This involves the Group's letings and resales services
Management have created a "severe” downside scenano which modelled the effect of reductions to revenue
up to June 2022 The model assumed that all transactional revenue will be lost and no cost reduction efforts
would be made In this "severe” scenano. sufficient kquidity and headroom on the Group's covenants were
demonstrated Even though the COVID-1§ pandemic has presented a high lavel of uncertainty to all
businesses. FirstPort operales as a resiienl busmess and has the capabshties to continue o operate for the
foreseeable future and for at leasi the penod of twelve months following the date of approval of these
financial statements. The Group generated cash » 2020 and ended the year with £7 585k cash with an
unutiised £7 5m revalving credit facilty.

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a gualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions subject to certain conditions. which have
been complied with_ including notification of and no objechon to. the use of exempiions by the Company's
shareholders The Company has taken advaniage of the following exemptions

] from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualfying entity and the
consohdated statement of cash flows, included in these financial statements includes any cash flows
of the Company,

(m from the financial instrument disclosures. tequired under FRS 102 paragraphs 11 41(by. 11.47(c).
114%(e), 1141(f). 1142, 1144, 1145 1147 11 4Bla)(m) 11 4B(adw) 11 48(b). 11.48(c) 12 26.
12 27, 12 29(a), 12 28{b) and 12.29A. as the information s provided in the consolidated financial
statement disclosures.

from disclosing the Company key management personnel compensaton. as required by FRS 102

omy paragraph 33 7. as the information i1s previded in the conschdated financial statement disclosures

The company has taken advantage of the exemphlion 1 section 408 of the Companies Act from

i presenting its indrvidual proft and loss accouat
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.6

1.7

Accounting policies (continued)

Audit exemption of subsidiaries

Drive Topco Limited has prowvided a legal guarantee under 5479A-C of the Companies Act 2006 1o the below
subsidiares for audit exemption.

Company Registration number
Drive Bidco Limited 12043128
Knight Square Holdings Limited 07925023
Knight Midco Lirmited 07927619
Knight Square Limited 07925019
FirstPort Limited 04352396
FirstPort Bespoke Property Services 016823498
FrrstPort Insurance Services Limited 3479572
FirstPort Property Services Limited 02081041
FirstPort Property Services No 2 Limited 022311868
FirstPort Property Sesvices No 4 Limited 07299764
FirstPort Property Services No 5 Limited 05876680
FirstPort Property Services Scotland 03829468
FirstPort Retrement Property Services Limited 01614866
Retrement Homesearch Limited 03829469
Mainstay Group Linited 04002715
Mainstay Facilities Management Limited 03340310
Marnstay Residental Limited 04052477
Chamonix Hoidings 12500321
Chamonix Group Limited 05856372
Chamopnix Estates Lumited 05851267
Fairfreld Company Secretaries Linnted 05988785

Basis of consolidation

The Group's conselidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and ali of its
subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 December ‘

A subsidiary 1s an eniity controlled by the Group Central i1s the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activiies The results of subsidiary undartakings are
inctuded in the consolidated financial statements from the date control is obtained until the date control
ceases Where a subsidiary has different accounting policies to the Group. adjustments are made to those
subsidiary financial statements to apply the Group's accounting policies when preparing the consolidated
financial statements

An assoctate is an enlity being nether a subsidary nor a joint venture, in which the Group helds a long-term
interest and where the Group has significant influence The Group considers that it has significant influence
where it has the power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the associate. The resulls of
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

All intra-Group transactions balances. income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of ¢onsolidation (centinued)

Where the group has established employee benefit trusis {EBT) and 1s the sponsoring enbty.
notwithstanding the legal duties of the trustees, the group considers that it has ‘de facto’ control of such
entities. Such arrangements are accourtled for as assets and habilittes of the sponsoring company and
inctuded 1n the consolidated financiat statements as appropriate The company’s equity instruments heid by
the EBT are accounted for as if they were the company's own equity and are treated as treasury shares No
gamn or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehepsive income on the purchase. sale or
cancellation of the company's cwn equity held by the EBT

Functional and presentation cuwrrency
The Group financial statements are presented n pound sterling and rounded to thousands The Comgpany's
functional and presentation currency 1s pound steriing

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the far value of the consideration recewed or recewahle and represents the
amount recaivable for goods supplied or services rendered net of discounts and rebates aliowad by the
Group and value added taxes

The Group recognises revenue when (a) the signficant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred 1o the buyer, () the Group retains no continwing involvement In or control over the goods: (c) the
amount of revenue can be measured relably. {d) it 1s probable that future economic benefits will flow 1o the
entity and (e) when the specific critena relating to each of the Group's sales channels have been met as
described below

Revenue for the key services provided by the Group 15 recegmsed as follows:
(i) Residential and commeraial property management services

Fees for restdential and commercial property rmanagement services. including maintenance, are recogrised
as the Group's obligations under the apphicable contracts are delivered to the customer which s typically on
a straight-line basis over the penod of the contract

() Other revenue

Commissions earned on the piacing af insurance products on behalf of third paries are recognised when the
Group has completed s services under the arrangements which is the inception date of the underiying
insurance policy Any commission adjustments for additional and relurn premiums are recognised as they
occur

Fees for real estate agency and property transfer services are reccgrised on completion of the related
property sale Fees for residental lettings arranged by the Group are recogrised on execubion af binding
rental contracts between landlord and tenant

(i Recharge of house managers’ employment cost

Amounts collected from customers in relatan to the empioyment of house managers and deputies o
overses indwvidual developments managed by the Group are recognised as net of cost, where recharges
equal costs incurred The Group is considered to be an agent as it does not have exposure 1o significant
rnsks and rewards assoc:ated with the rendering of these services
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" Accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the fairr value of the asset recewved or recewvable when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant conditions wili be met and the grants will be received

The Group adopts the accrual model relating to Government grants Government grants relating to turnover
are recognised as income over the periods when the related costs are incurred

Exceptional items

The Group ctassifies certain non-recurring charges or credits 1n a financia!l pencd that are not part of the
underlying trading business. that have a material impact {(by size or nature) on the Group's financal results
as 'exceptional tems’ These are disciosed separately to show the underlying trading of the Group

Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benefiis to employees. inciuding annual bonus arrangements paid holiday
arrangements and defined contribution pension plans

(1) Short-term benefits

Short-term benefits ncluding hohday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits. are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the service s received An accrual 15 recognised at the balance sheet date
for any material remaining cbligations to employees

(i) Defined contribution pension plans

The Group operates a number of country-specific defined contnbution pians for ts employees A defined
contrisutian plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate entity.
Once the contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment obligations The contributions are
recognised as an expense when they are due Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the batance sheet
The assets of the plan are held separately from the Group in independently admirustered funds

(i) Annual benus pian

The Group operates annual bonus plans for employees An expense is recogrised in the profit and loss
account when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to make payments under the plans as a resuit
of past events ang a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made
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Accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments

From time to time. the Group makes equity settled share-based payment awards to employees of subsidiary
underiakings

In the Group financial statements. the fair value of the awards at the date of grant 1s charged fo the profit or
loss over the vesting penod with a corresponding increase In equdly being recognised through retained
£arnings.

In the Company financia! staterments. the obligation to settle the transaction with the employees of
subsidiary undertakings 1s recogrused as a capital contribution made to those subsidiaries by increasing the
cost of invesimen! 1n subsidiary undertakings as the subsidianes recognises the charge for share based
payment awards in profit or loss,

Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjustng the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that. ultmately, the cumulative amount recognised aver the
vestng penod is based on the value of awards that eventually vest Non-vesting condiions and market
vesting condstions are faclored into the fair value of the awards granted As long as alt other vestng
condiions are satsfied. 2 charge is made to proft or loss wrespective of whether any market vestng
condittons are satisfied The cumulative expense (s not adjusted for fallure t¢ achieve a market vesting
condition or where a non-vesting condition 1s not satishied

Taxation

Taxation expense for the period comprises current and defersed tax recogmsed in the reporting penod Tax
15 recognised In the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recogrused in other
comprehensive income or directly n equity in which case the felated tax 5 also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Current or deferred taxation assets and fiabihties are not discounted
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Accounting palicies (continued)

Taxation (continued)
(1) Current tax

Current tax s the amount of income tax payable In respect of the taxable profit for the period Tax s
calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year
end Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable {ax regulation is subject to interpretation. It estabbshes provisions where appropnate on the basis
of amounts expected 1o be paid to the tax authorities

{is) Deferred tax

Deferred tax anses frem tming differences that are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements These tming differences anse from the
inclusion of income and expenses In tax assessments in pericds different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial statements Deferred tax s also recognised in relation o assets and lrabihbies
acauired in a business combination where the amount that will be deducted or assessed for tax differs {0 the
fair value at which the asset or liabikty 1s recognised on acquisition in the financial statements The tax base
of an asset or liability 1s determined based on the expected manner of recovery Investment properties and
land are deemed o0 have recovery via disposal and accordingly the UK capital gains regime 1s applied when
estimating the tax base of these assets

Deferred tax 13 recognised on all iming differences at the reporting date Unrelieved tax losses and other
deferred tax assets are only recognised when it 1s probable that they will be recovered agatnst the reversal
of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
year end and that are expected to appiy to the reversal of the timing difference

Deferred tax assets and habilties are offset when there s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an abulity
and intention to settle the balances at the same time

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method

The cost of a business combination 1s the fair value of the consideration given. liabilites incurred or
assumed and of equity instruments 1ssued plus the costs directly attributable to the business combination
Where conltrol 15 achieved in stages the cost s the consideration at the date of each transaction

Cn acquisition of a business, fair values are attributed to the identifiable assets labilities and contingent
liabilities unless the far value cannot be measured rehably in which case the value is incorporated in
gocowill Where the fair value of contingent hiabilities cannat be reiiably measured they are disclosed on the
same basis as other contingant habilihes

Goodwill recogrised represents the excess of the far value and directly attnibutable costs of the purchase
consideration over the fair values of the Group's inlerest in the 1dentifiable ne! assets lhabilittes and
contingent habilities acquired

On acquisition, goodwili is allocated to cash-generating units (CGU's) that are expected to benefit fram the
synergies of the business combination from which it arose
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Accounting policies {continued}

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is amartised over its expected useful fife which is estimated to be twenty years Goodwill s
assessed for mpairment when there are indicators of impairment and any impairment is charged to the
income statement No reversals of imparment are recogmsed

intangibte fixed assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment [osses.
intangible assels acquired on business combinatons are recogmised separately from goodwill at the
acquisition date if the fair value can be measured reliably.

Amartisation 1s calculated. using the straight-ine method, to allocate the deprecizble amount of the assets
to their residual values over ther estmated useful lives, as follows

Software straight-hne cver 3 years
Acquired customer hsts straight-ine over 2 lo 10 years
Acquired brands straight-line over 5 to 10 years

Amortisation s included In ‘administralive expenses in the profit and ioss acceunt

Where factors, such as technelogical advancement or changes in market price. indicate that residual value
or useful Iife have changed. the residual value useful iife or amortisation rate are amended prospectively to
reflect the new circumstances

The assets are reviewed for imparment if the above faclors ndicate that the carrying amount may be
impaired

Costs associated with maintaimng computer software are recognised as an expense as incurred
Development costs that are directly attnbutable to the design and festing of «entfiable and unigue software
products controfied by the Group are recogrised as mtangible assets when the following criteria are met

* itss technically feasible to complete the software sa that it will be available for use:

= management intends to complete the software and use or sefl it

» theres an abiiity to use or sell the software:

= ican be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future ecanomic benefit.

» adequate technical, financial and other rescurces to complete the development and ta use or seil the
software are available and

* the expenditure attributable 1o the software during its development can be reliably measured

Qtner development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred
Development casts previously recognised as an expense areé not recegnised as an asset in a subsequent
period
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1.18

Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Tangble assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses Cost
includes the eriginal purchase prnce. costs dwectly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. dismanthing and restoration costs

Depreciation and residual values

Depreciation on other assets s calculated, using the straight-ine methed. to allocate the depreciabte
amount to therr residual values over their estimated useful hves, as follows

Office equipment fixtures and fittings straight-line over 3 to & years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted, o appropnate. at the end of each
reporting period. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively

Subsequent additions

Subseguent costs. including major nspections. are \ncluded 1n the assets carrying amount or recognised as
a separale asset. as appropriate only when it 1s probable that economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured rehably

Repairs mamntenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred
Derecogrilion

Tangible assets are derecogrused on disposal or when no future economic benefiis are expected On
disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 1S recognised in the
profit and loss account and inciuded in other operating income

Investment properties, including assets held for sale

The Group's interests i leasehold apartments within residential development sites are classified as
investment properties and included within non-current assets

Investment properties are nitially recognised at cost, which for the Group was the fair value from acquisition
n a business combination Subsequent to inibial recognition investment properties are recognised at far
value through profit and loss The farr value of investment properties 15 determmned using valuation
techmques to estimate their current market values taking into consideration the timing and impact of any
encumprances to sale

From time to time the Group makes selected investment properties available for sale where the demand in a
location warrants the cost of markating and sales Where the Iikelihood of sale withun the next financial year
15 probable. the properly 15 classiied as helg for resale and inciuded within current assets, and is
recognised at far value less costs to sell

Fixed asset investments

Interest In subsidianes, associates and joinfly controlled entties are imtially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for
impairment at each reporting date and any impairment losses or reversals of imparment losses are
recognised immed:ately in profit or loss
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1.20

1.2

Accounting policies {continued)

Borrowing costs

Al borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss account n the percd in which they are ncurred

Leased assets

At inception the Group assesses agreements that transfer the right 10 use assets The assessment considers
whether the arrangement 1s. or contains, a lease based on the substance of the arrangement

Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership are classified as
finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised at commencement of the lease asg assets at the faw value of the leased asset
or. if lower the present value of the minimum lease payments calculated using the interest rate implicit in the
lease Where the mplait rate cannot be detwermined the company's incremental borrowing rate 1s used.
Incremental direct costs incurred n negoliating and arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the
assel

Leases that do not transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership are ciassified as operating
leases Payments under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the penod of the lease

Incentives recesved to enter into an operating lease are credited to the profit and loss account. to reduce the
lease expense. on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date non-financial assets not carried at faw value are assessed to determing whether
there is an indication that the asset {or asset's cash-generating unit) may be impaired if there is such an
indication the recoverable amount of the assel (or asset's cash-generating unit) 1s compared to the carrying
amount of the asset {or asset’s cash-generating unit) The Group as a whole is considered to be a cash-
generaling umt

The recoverable amount of the asset {or asset's cash-generating untt) is the higher of the fair value less
costs o sell and value in use Value in use 1s defined as the present value of the future cash flows before
interest angd tax oblainable as a resull ¢f the assets (or assel's cash-generating uni) continued use These
cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current market nisk-free rate and
the risks inhearent in the asset

iIf the recoverable amount of the asset {or asset's cash-generaling unit} is estimated to be lower than the
carrying amount. the carrying amount Is reduced to #ts recoverable amount An impairment joss is recagrised
1n the profit and loss account

If an mpairment loss 15 subsequently reversed, the carrying amaunt of the asset (or asset's cash-generating
unit) 1s increased 0 the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the exten! that the revised
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of depreciation
or amorhsation) had no impairment lass been recognised n prior years A reversal of an wmpairment 10ss is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Goodwll 1s allacated on acquisiton to the cash-generating untt
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination Goodwill 1s included n the carrying value of cash-
generating units for impairment testing Any previous impairment of goodwiil is not reversed
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1.23

1.24

Accounting paolicies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, depoasits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts when appropriate are shown within barrowings in current liabitities

Far the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows the Group adopts an accounting policy of
classifying interest receipts as an investing cash flow and interest payments as a financing cash flow
Taxaton cash flows are classified as operating cash fiows

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past
evenrts. it 1s probabie that an cutfiow of resources will be required to settfe the cbhigation. and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated reliably

Provisions are measured based on the Group's best estmale at the reporting date of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligatton discounted {0 the present value where material

Financial instruments

The Group bas chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments
{n Financial assets

Basic financial assets. including trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances, are initially
recognised at transaction price. uniess the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the
transaction is measured at the present value of the future receipts discountad at a market rate of interest
Such assets are subsequently carned at amortised cost using the effective interest method

At the end of each reporting penad financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
evidence of imparment If an assetl 1s impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discaunted at the asset's onginal effectve
interest rate The imparrment loss 1s recogmsed in profit of loss

If there s a decrease in the impairment loss ansing frem an event occurmng after the impairment was
recognised the impairment is reversed The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does naot
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been recogrised The
imparment reversal s recognised in profit or loss

Financal assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire of
are seltied or (b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to
another party or (¢) despite having retained some significant nsks ang rewards of ownership, control of the
asset has been transferred to another party wha has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an
unrelated third party without iImposing additional restrictions

{in Financial kabilities

Basic financial liabibties, including trade and other payables bank ipans. loans from fellow Group
companies and preference shares that are classified as debt. are initially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present valua of the future receipts discounted at 2 market rate of interest

Debt instrurnents are subsequently carried at amortised cost. using the effective interest rate method.
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1.25

1.26

1.27

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments {continued)
{i)  Financial habtlities (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliies are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that ¢t is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down In this case the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs To the extent there 1s nc evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the faciiity 1o which it relates

Trade payables are gbligatiens to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary caurse
of business from supphers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities If payment is due wilthin one
year or less Hf nat, they are presented as non-current liabilites Trade payables are recagmised imtially at
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Financial liabilites are derecognised when the habiity 1s extnguished that 1s when the contractual
obligation is discharged, cancelied or expires

(ny  Offsetting

Financial assets and Labiities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when
there 1s a legally enforceabie right to set off the recogmised amounts and there s an intention o settle on a
net basis of to realise: the asset and settie the hiabihly simultanecusly.

tivy  Clent monies held

The property management services performed by the Group include services provided to residential
management companies and which nvalve arranging and heldmg cash from levies and charges paid by
residents o the residential management companies The cash held at any point 1n time 15 held under
Statutory Trust as set out in the Landlord & Tenant Act 1987 Accordingly the Group does aoct include these
cash balances in its balance sheet

Share capitai

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incrementat costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new ordinary
shares are shown in equity as a deduction. net of tax. from the proceeds

Related party transactions

The Group discloses transactions with related parlies which are not whally owned within the Group Where
appropriate. transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless. in the opinion of the direclors, separate
disciosure s necessary to understand the effect of the transactions on the Group financial statements

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting polices. the directors are reguired to make judgements.
estimates and assumptians about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on hisiorical expenence and
other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates
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2 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty {continued)

Estmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and other
factors, meluding expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances
Ravisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate 1s revised where the
revision affects only that period. or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects
both current and future penods

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

{1} Ciassification of leaseheld apartments as investment properties

The Group's interests in leasehold apartments within resdential development sites are classified as
investment properties and included within non-current assets. In applying this classificalron the Group has
considered several factors including the apartments are typically used by house managers the apartments
are not used by the Group for any other admmistrative purposes, the Group does not typically earn renial
incame from the apartments but does benefit from capital appreciation i the open market value of the
apartments, the apartments are periodically made avaitable for sale by the Group and hence gains in value
are crystallised. the fair value of the apartments can be readily attained in a manner that 1s not considered to
require undue cost or effort an the part of the Group

{b) Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumpuions concerning the future The resulting accounting estmates will
by definition seldom equal the refated actual results The estmates and assumptions that have a significant
nsk of causing a matenal adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and labiliities wittin the next financial
year are addressed below

() Fair value of acquisiton of Knight Square Hoidings Limited. Manstay Group and Chamonix Group
The far value of tangible and intangible assets acquired on the acguisition of Knight Square Holdings
Limited Group, Mainstay Group and Chamonix Group involved the use of valuation techmiques and the
estimation of future cash flows to be generated over a number of years The estimation of the fair values
requires the combination of assumptions including revenue growth. sales mix and velumes. rental values
and increases and customer attrition rates {n addition the use of discount rates requires judgement

[t} imparment of infangible assets and geodwll

The Group considers annually whether an indicator of goodwill impairment exists Where an indication of
mpairment exists management are required to estimate the recoverable value of the cash-generating units
{CGUs) This regwres estmation of the future cash flows from the CGUs and also selection of appropnate
discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those cash flows

() Development related provisions

The Group manages a large number of commercral and residental property developments, which give rise to
some disputes and claims by customers under the management cantracts that govern them These claims
can take many years to emerge. so management censiders # appropnate to recognise a provision These
provisions require management s best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on legistative and
contractual requirernents In addition. the timing of the cash flows and the discount rates used to establish
net present value of the obligations require management's judgement

{riv)  Deferred tax assels
The recognition of deferred tax assetls particularly relating to previously incurred losses. requires judgement.
including in refation to the future taxable profits of the entities that incurred the losses. the types of losses
and future income  the utilsation of capital allowances in any year, and the extent of group relief transfers to
pbe made across the Group
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Acquisitions in the year

Acquisition of Mainstay Group

©On 15 September 2020. the Group acquired 100% share of Mamnstay Group Limited for a total consideration of
£34.385k. The following {able summarises the consideration paid by the Group. the far value of assets
acquired and habitties assumed at the acquisition date.

Cansideration at 15 September 2020:

Cash
Nen-cash consideration
Directly attnbutable cost

Faor cash fiow disclosure purposes the amounts are disclosed as follaws:

Cash consideration
Directly attributable cost

Less

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Net cash flow

Fixed assets
Customer relationshps
Brands

Tangible assetls

Current assets

Trade and other recewables
Cash and cash equivalents
Related party receivable

Total assets

Trade and other payables
Corporation tax payable
Deferred tax hability

Net Assets
Goodwill

Total purchase censideration

Notes

16
18
17

16

Book Value
£000

537

2877
5414
3630

Adjustments
£°000

11,602
3,161

£'600

30,058
3,630
697

34,385

30.058
697

3Q0.755

{5 414)
25341

Fair value
£°000

11,602
3181
537

2877
5414
3630

12.458

(7.049)
(99;
(85)

14,763

(2.805)

27 221
{7 043}

(99)
(2.890)

5225

11,958

17,183
17 202
34 385

———
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31

Acquisition of Mainstay Group (continued)

Contribution by the acquired business for the reporting period since acquistion”

2020

£'000
Turnover 7.092
Profit B74

Upon acquisition, the business had net assets with a farr value of £17,183k. Included in the fair vaiue
adjustments are the recogmition of intangible assets relating to the acourred business's customer
relationships and brand identified and its fair value was measured at £11.802k and £3,161k respectively A
deferred tax labty of £2 808k has been recogrised on the intangitle assets which has been added to
goadwll

The goodwill of £17 202k from the acquistion 1s attributable to the expertise and experience of the warkforce
acquired. the customer relaticnships and economies of scale expected from combining the operatians into
the Group Management has estimated the useful Ife of the goodwiil to be 20 years

The customer relationships intangibie assets has been attributed a usefu! life of between 2 and 10 years and
brands intangible asset has been attnbuted a useful ife of 10 years The useful Iife 1s based on the penod of
when the majority of the value is generated
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Acquisitions in the year

Acquisition of Chamaonix Group

On 2 December 2020 the Group acquired 100% share of Chamonix Holdings Limited for a total consideration
af £16,355k The following table summarses the consideration pad by the Group. the fair value of assets

acquired ang liabilities assumed at the acquisition date

Consideration at 2 December 2020: E'000
Cash 7,690
Borrowings setiled 7.922
Non-cash consideration ar7
Directly attributabte cost 266
16.355
For cash flow disclosure purposes the amounts are disclosed as follows
Cash consideration 7.690
Borrowings settled 7.922
Directly attributable cost 266
15878
Less.
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (4.254)
Net cash flow 11,624
Notes Book Value  Adjustments Fair Vaiue
£'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Customer relationships 16 - 7258 7,258
Brands 16 - 501 501
Tangible assels 17 62 - 62
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 887 - 897
Cash and cash equivalents 4,254 - 4254
Total assets 5213 7.759 12,972
Trade and other payables {(1.271) - {1.271)
Corporation tax payable (254) - (294)
Deferred tax liagitity (57) (1.474) {1.631)
Net Assets 3.591 6.285 9.87%
Goodwill 16 6.479
Total purchase consideration 16,355
—_— =
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3.2 Acquisition of Chamonix Group (continued)
Confributron by the acquired business for the reporting period since acquisition
2020
£°000
Turnover 473
Profr 178
Upon acquisiion. the business had net assets wih a far value of £9 876k Included in the far value
adjustments are the recogmtion of intangible assets relating to the acguired busmess's customer
relationships and brand Wdentified and its fair value was measured at £7.258k and £501k respectively A
deferred tax liability of £1,474k has been recognised on the intangible assets which has been added to
goodwill
The goedwiil of £6 479k from the acquisition is attributable to the expertise and experience of the workforce
acquired the customer relaticnships and economies of scale expected from combining the operations o
the Group Managemert has estimated the useful iife of the goodwili to be 20 years
The customer relationships intangible asset has been attributed a useful Ife of 10 years and brands
intangible asset has been atirbuted a useful life of 5 years The usefu! Iife 15 based on the period of when
the majority of the value is generated
4 Turnover
An analysis of the group’s turnover is as follows
7 month
Y .
ear ended period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Turnover by category
Residential property management services 55 375 18 443
Commercial property and asset management 8415 R
Other revenue 2.996 958
66 786 19.401
Other revenue relates to insurance commissions and consultancy revenue
Ali turnover 1s generated in the UK
5 Cost of sales

Cost cf sales anse due to the acquisibon of Mainstay's commercial property mangement business and
residentiai facihties management business Cost of sales recogrised in relation to the residental facilitibes
management business 1s where the Group considers itseif to be principal rather than agent in previging on-
site staff

As cost of sales anly takes the above costs into consideration. gross profit shown sheuld not be used when
trying to determine the profitability of the Group
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Year ended 7 manth
] Exceptional items period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Transactional costs 907 1.941
Restructure cosis 1.546 -
Other exceptonal items 331 182
2.784 2,123

Fransactional costs mainly relate to ane-off costs incurred aon the acguisition of Mainstay and Chamonix
such as professional fees and integraticn costs

Restructure costs incurred as a result of restructunng the Group due fo COVID-19 and the Mainsiay
acquisition

Other excepttanal tems largely refate to one off costs associated with dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic
and relate to persanal protective equipment Included in other excephonal items are costs in relation to
exiting the Londen Bridge office and legacy costs associated with the acquisition of Krught Square Holdings
Lim#ded Group in 2019.

in 2019. exceptional charges related to the acquisition of Knight Square Holdings Limited Group

7 Other Operating Income

An anatysis of the other operating income is as foliows
7 month
period ended
31 December 31 December

Year ended

2020 20149

£000 £'000
R&D expenditure credit 386 -
Government grant 286 -
672 -

R&D expenditure cred:t relates to an R&D tax claim made on the Group’s development of s digital project

Gavernment grant relates to the UK Government's Caronavirus Job Retention Scheme {CJRS). The Group
furloughed employees in ing with the CJRS and recoegnised £286k in the year as income There are no
contingencies attached to the CIRS
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8 Operating foss
Operating ioss for the year / period 1s stated after charging

Depreciation of owned tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Operating lease charges

9 Adjusted EBITDA

Operating toss reconciles to adjusted EBITDA as foliows

Operating loss

Depreciation of owned tangible assels
Amortisation of intangible assels

Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Exceptional items

Share-hased payments

Adjusted EBITDA

10  Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and therr associates

Fees pavable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the
Parent Company and the Group's Censchdated financial
statements

fees payable to the Company's audnars for other services
- The audit of the Company’s subsidianes

- Audit refated assurance services

- Tax compliance services

- Tax advisory services

- Qther services

Tota! amount payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates

Year ended

31 December

7 month
period ended
31 Decemnber

2020 2019

£'000 £'000

1,849 855
10,421 2,920

55 “

3.451 1.096

Year ended 7 manth

31 December

periad ended
31 December

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
(1.693) (2.238)
1849 655
10.421 2,920
55 .
2784 2123
68

13 484 3,460
7 month
Year ended period ended
31 December 21 December
2020 2019
£'000 £'000
422 46

12 241

31 6

22 a5
129 115

& 7

622 510
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11

12

Employees

The average maonthly number of persons (including directars) empioyed by the group and company dunng
the year was

2020 2019
Number Number
Office and management 1539 790
Haouse managers and deputies 2.260 2309
3799 3.099
Their aggregate remuneration comprised
Year ended 7 month

period ended
31 December 31 Decembher

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Wages and salanes 33.534 12 450
Sowal secunty costs 3,350 2.503
Other pension cosis note 27) 1285 346
Share-based payments 68 -
Total aggregate remuneration before capialised costs 38 237 15 2993
Less capitalised costs (7a0 (159)
Aggregate remuneration charged to profit and 10ss 37 447 15,140

House rnanagers are employed by the Group to oversee individual developments managed by the Group.
The employment cost of house managers is not intluded in the above table as these ¢osts are recharged at
cost to the developments managed by the Group and therefore are not a cost to the Group on account of the
Group being an ageni for this transaction These amounled 1o wages and salary costs of £38 912k (2019
£12 088k) social secufity costs of £2,902k (2019 £886K) and other pens:on costs of £1 232k (2019 £355k)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group capitalised wages and salaries of £684k (2019
£134k}. sooal security cost of £75k (2019 16k) and olher pension cost of E31k (2019 9k) Capiahsed
waqges forms part of the cost of internally developed software

Directors’ remuneration
7 month
pericd ended
31 December 31 December

Year ended

2020 201%

£°000 £000

Aggregate remunerations . 1.020 266
1.020 266

The number of directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined benefit schemes amounted
to one (2018 none)

4 directors were paxd by the Group dunng the year The remaining dreclors did not recewe fees The
emcluments disciosed above are from the date which the indwvidual became a director of the Company
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12

13

Directors’ remuneration {continued)

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid te the highest paid director

Aggregate emoluments

Company

The Company has ne employees (2019 none}

Interest payable and similar expenses

Interest on financial liabiitries measured at amortised cost

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts

Interest on finance leases and hire purchase contracts
Interest on sharehoider foans

Loan fee amortisation

Year ended

31 December

7 month
period ended
31 December

2020 2019
£000 £000
565 146
565 146
Year ended 7 moath

31 December

period ended
31 December

2020 2012
£000 £'000
5557 1.643
- 3
5504 1.622
588 161
11,749 3429

Debt 1ssue costs. including loan amortisation fees which are directly incurred i arrangement of borrowing
faciities are included within the calculation of the effective interest rate on the borrowing but are disclosed
separately as the Group consider this information awds i the understanding of the total financing costs
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14

Share-based payments

During the current year and prior period. certain emplayees of the Group subscribed for a total of 23,208 B
Ordinary Shares in the Company The B Ordinary Shares were issued in order to incentivise the holders to
grow the value of the Group

In the event that a holder of B Qrdinary Shares leaves the employment of the Group. the Company has the
fight but not the obligation to require the holder to transfer their B Ordinary Shares to an emplayee of the
Group or an employee trust established for the benefit of employees of the Group.

The price that a holder of B Ordinary Shares receives for such a transfer depends upon inter alia, the date on
which the holder leaves and the manner in which they leave The price varies between the ‘fair price’ of the
shares (this being a price determined by the transferor and remuneration commiites or, in the absence of
agreement. an independent expert} and the price the holder paid for the share

In all ather respects the B Grdinary Shares rank pan passu with the A Ordinaty Shares of the Company (the
only other class of shares m 1ssue} as regards voting nghts nghts to dividends and nghts on a return of
capital

The issue of the B Qrdinary Shares has been accounted for as an equity setlled share-based payment
arrangement in accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1 13

The fair value of the shares 1ssued under this arrangement has been measured by reference to the expected
future value of the Group at an assumed exit date. this being the date of sale, asset sale. hsting or winding-
up The main steps in the valuation approach were as follows

* Step 1 - estmating the enterpnse value of the Group at the date the B Qrdinary Shares were issued

* Step 2 - simulating the future enterprise value of the Group using a Mote-Carlo valuation model through to
the assumed exit date

* Step 3 - deriving the value attributable to the holders of the A Ordinary Shares and B Ordinary Shares of the
Company by deducting net debt at the assumed exit date

+ Step 4 - allocating the proportion of the equity value to the B Ordnary Shares

« Step 5 - discounting the equity vatue back to the date the B Ordinary Shares were issued using the risk-free
fate and expected time to the assumed exit date

For the penod ended 31 December 2019. no accounting charge was recognised m relatton ta the above
described share-based payment arrangement as the amount was considered immatenal Duning the year
ended 31 December 2020 the Group has recognised a total expense of £68k in profit or loss This comprises
a catch up charge of £12k in relation to the prior period and a charge of £56k for the current year
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18

Tax on loss

Year ended

31 December

7 month
period ended
31 December

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on taxable loss for the current year - 9
Adjustments in respect of prior pernods {459) -
Total current tax {(credy) / charge {459 9
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversa! of liming differences (BO6G) 115
Adustments in respect of pror periods 545 .
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance 1.156 (53)
Total deferred tax 1.095 63
Total tax charge for the year 636 72

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation per the profit and
follows.

Year ended

31 December

loas account as

7 month
period ended
31 December

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
Loss before taxation {13 442} {5 667)
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 19% (2019 19%) (2.554) (1077
Non-deductible expenses 2.180 1.202
Effect of changes in tax rates and laws 1.156 (53)
Income not taxable for tax purposes {2} -
R&D expenditure credits (73)
Adjustments n respect of prior periods {459)
Adjustments in respect of pricr periods {deferred tax) 545
Transfers (167) -
Total tax charge for the year 536 72

In the Spring Budget 2021. the Gavernment announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate will
mcrease to 25% Since the proposal fo increase the rate to 25% had not been substantively enacted at the

balance sheet date. its effects are not included in these financial statements However, it

is Ikely that the

overall effect of the change hag it been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, would be to
increase the tax expense for the year by £3.598k and to increase the deferred tax habity by £3 598k

Deferred tax balances at 3t December 2020 were measured at 19% (2019 19%) for items that are

expected lo be charged or credited to the profit and loss account in the next financial year
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16

Intangible assets

Group

Cost Note
Balance at 1 January 2020

Additions

Addihions from acquisition of Mainstay kK|

Additons from acquisition of Chamonix 3.2
Bailance at 31 December 2020
Accumuiated amaortisation and impairment

Balance at 1 January 2020
Amortisation charge for the year

Balance at 31 December 2020
Carrying amount
Al 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Goodwill Software  Customer Brands Total
List
£'000 EQ00 £'000 £'000 E'00D
51.998 5568 56 632 722 21920
- 8.556 - - 8 556
17.202 11602 3.161 31965
6,479 - 7 258 501 14.238
75679 14 124 75492 1% 384 176.679
823 59 1.793 245 2.920
2878 497 6173 873 10.421
3.701 556 7,966 1.118 13.341
71978 13.568 67 526 10 266 163.338
51175 5509 54 839 7477 119.000

Included in total cost of software £12.787k has been classified as assets under construction as at 31 December 2020

(2019 £4,246k)

The Company had no Iftangible assets at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019
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17 Tangible assets

Group Office equipment,
fixtures & fittings
Note £'000

Cost
Balance at 1 January 2020 3766
Addons from acquisiion of Mamsiay 3.1 537
Additians from acquisiion of Chamaonix 32 62
Additions 975
Disposals {210}
Balance al 31 December 2020 513¢

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at t January 2020 655
Depreciation charged in the year 1.849
Disposals {155)
Balance at 31 December 2020 2349

Carrying amount
Balance at 31 December 2020 2.781

Batance at 31 December 2019 311

The Company had no tangble assets at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019
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18 investment in subsidiaries

Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 20149
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Totaf investment in subsidiares - - 162 G4
Movements in investments
Company £'000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 20290 94
Capital contributions made to subisidiaries 68
Balance at 31 Decembaer 2020 162
Carrying amount
Balance at 31 December 2020 162
Balance at 31 December 201§ 94

Investment in subsidianes held by the Company can be found in note 35

Capital contributions made e subsidaries in the year arise as a result of share-based payments charges to
employees in the subsidiary entites The obhigation to setlle the transaction with the employees of subsidiary
undertakings 15 recegnised as a capital contnbution made to those subsidianes by in¢reasing the cost of
wnvestment in subsidiary undertakings as the subsidiaries recogmses the ¢charge for share based payment
awards in profit or loss See note 1 13 for further detaits

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments ts not more than thetr recoverable amount as
supported by their underlying assets
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20

Financial instruments

2020 2019
Note £'000 £000
Financial assets measiared at amortised cost
Trade debtors 20 2643 1490
Other debtors 20 995 722
Cash at bank and in hand 7 585 4 558
Accrued income 828 678
12 051 7.448
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trage creditors 22 3,161 2,167
Other creditors 22 3,307 2121
Accruals 3.880 7.078
Bank lcans 24 g7.700 64 200
Sharehoider loans - principal 24 651.431 51.036
Interest on shareholder loans 24 7221 1,622
Deferred financing costs 24 (4.246} (2 .943)
172,654 125,281
Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'0600 £'006 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 2.643 1.490 -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 318 -
Corporation tax recoverable 1478 593 -
Other debtors 995 722 -
Prepayments and accrued income 3757 2508 -
8.871 5313 318

Trade debtors are stated after provisions for impairment of £413k (2019 £31k)

Amounts owsd by Group undertakings are unsecured. interest free. have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable an demand
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22

23

Client monies

Residents’ net cash balances held in frust accounts at 31 December 2020 were £335 182k (2019 £250.318k)
Cash balances held in joint accounts at 31 December 2020 were £4,604k {2019, £6,307k)

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£'000 £700 £'000 £'000

Trade creditors 3181 2187 - -
Armounts owed to group undertakings - - 268 -
Cther creditors 3.307 2121 - -
Corporation tax payable 445 - - -
Other taxation and social secunty 8.153 2.380 - -
Accruals and deferred income 9,522 7.078 1 -
24,588 13.746 269 -

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured interest free. have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayabie on demand

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note £000 £'000 £'000 £000

Bank loans and overdrafts (net of fmancing costs) 24 93,454 61257 - -
Shareholder lcans 24 61.431 51 038 - -
Interest on shareholder loans 24 7221 1622 - -
162,106 113915 - -
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24

Borrowings

Banrk lcans
Shareholder loans - pnncipal
Interest on shargholder loans

Deferred financing costs

Payable after one year

Bank loans

The Group has a £105 2m bank facility comprising of the following

Bank facility term? schedule

Group

Term loan facsity B1
Term ioan facdity B2

Term loan acguisttion/capex facility

Revolving faciity

Additanal Super Sernior Faciity

Additianal Unitranche Facility

Second Additional Unitranche Facility

The revolving facility remains undrawn as at 31 December 2020

Group Group Company Company
2020 2018 2020 2019
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
97 700 64 200 -
51431 51,036 - -
7221 1622 - -
(4.246) (2,943 - -
162,106 113.915 - -
162.108 1138915 - -
Nominal Termination Rena t Credit
Interest rate date epaymen Facility
£'000
LIBOR + 2 25% 09-0c¢t-25 At termination date 12,100
LIBOR + 6% 09-Apr-26 At termination date 52,100
LIBOR + 8% 09-Apr-26 At termination date 10.000
LIBOR + 2 25% 09-Cct-25 At termination date 7.500
LIBOR + 3% 09-Cct-25 At termination date 4,000
LIBOR + 7 75% 09-Apr-26 At terrmination date 7.000
LIBOR +6 75% 09-Apr-26 At termination date 12.500
105,200

Interest on the facility 1s cash settled on a six monthly basis A commitment fee 1s charged on the undrawn

amount on a three monthly basis

The facility is held by FirstPort Limited and 15 secured agams! the shares and assets of Knight Square

Limited and its subsidianies

The financial covenants attached to the £105 2m bank facility were tested as at year end Compliance with
covenants in respect of the external bank debt has been assessed to June 2022 with no breaches farecast

The nominal intgrest rale in the table above is condibional and depends on the financial performance of the
Group The current rate disclosed 1s based on the current financial performance
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24 Borrowings {continued)
Shareholder loans

The Group has one class of sharehoider loan note instrument in 1ssue at the balance sheet date Dunng the year the Group
1ssued a further £10 459 412 of sharehelder (can notes te finance the acquisthon of Mainstay The lsan notes are isted on
The Infernational Stock Exchange As at the 31 December 2020 the Dnve Topeo Employee Benefil Trust nolds £64k of
shareholder loan notes (2019 £nil) which 15 consoligated in the Group and Company financial statements See note 1 7 for
further details

The principat outstanding on the sharehotder loan notes w e Graup as at 31 December 2020 was £61 431k (2019
£51.033k) and have bean provided by the following parties

2020 2018

s Accrued  Interest Interest _ Accrued Interest
Principal ) Principal

interest paid expanse interest  expense
E'000 £900 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cquistone Partners Europe Limited 58 307 6978 - 5406 49 461 1.572 1572
Management 2124 243 (5) 198 1575 50 50
61431 7221 {5} 5 604 51 035 1,622 1622

Interest |3 payable on the outstanding baiance at a rale of 10% of the principal accrued on A daily basis  Interest an the
Sharehalder Loan Notes can be setlled annually on 6 Septernber by at the Group s optron either the 1ssue of Payment in
Kind {PIK) Notes which rank ahead of the onginal notes or by deferral i which case compound interest vall apply 10 the
amount deferred

Repayment of the Shareholder Loan Notas 15 due on the earhier ol 6 September 2029 or on ext

Deferred financing costs

Deferred financing costs are amorhised over the pered of the revolving credit facity which makes up the effective interest
rate

25  Provisions for liabilities

Group Company Group Company

2020 2020 2019 2019

Note £'000 £'000 E'Go0 £'000

Development related provisions 542 - 538 -
Deferred tax habiities 26 15131 - g 615

15673 - 10,153 -
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26

Provisions for liabilities (continued)

Movements on develepment related provisions
Devetopment

related

provisions

Group Note £'000
Balance at 1 January 2020 538
On acguisition 31 205
Additional provisions in the year 691

Release of prowsions in the year {171
Utilisation of provision {721)
Balance at 31 December 2020 542

The Group manages a large number of commercial and residental property developments. which give nse to
some disputes and cla:ms by customers under the management contracts that gavern them These claims
can take many years t¢ emerge so management considers it appropriate to reccgnise a provision These
provisions require management's best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on legislatwve and
contractual requirements. In addition. the timing of the cash flows and the discount rates used to establish
net present value of the obligations require management's judgement

Whilst significant progress has been made in addressing these claims. and management continue (o assess
them on ther merls, a provision of £542k (2019 £53Bk) has been recegnised al the year end This s
expected 1o be utlised aver a penod of up to five years, with an estimated £461k (2019 £308k) expected to
be settled within the next financial year

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset where the Group of company has a legally enforceable rght to
doso The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

2020 2020 2019 2019

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fixed asset iming differences - (16.602) - {9.684)
Shori-term tming differences 73 . . (20)
Non-trading timing differences - - 80 .
Losses 1.434 - 61 -
Investment property - 136) - (32)
1.507 {16.638) 121 (9.736)
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27

Beferred taxation (continued)
Group Company

Note £000 £'000
Movements in the year:
Liability at 1 January 2020 (9.615) -
On acquisiton of Mainstay 31 (2.890) -
On acquisttion of Chamonix 3.2 {1.531} -
Charge %o profit and loss account (1.095 -
Liabiity at 31 December 2020 {15,131} -

The net deferred tax liabiiity expected to reverse in 2021 1s £1.782k (2019 £1,146k) This pnmarily relates to
the reversai of iming differences on capitat aliowances

The Group does not have any unrecognised deferred tax asset for losses carned forward

Company

The Company has ne deferred tax provision at 31 December 2020 (2038 ni)

Retirement benelit schemes

2020
£000
Defined contribution schemaes
Charge to profit and loss account 1.285

2019
£'000

346

The Group sponsars and conlributes to a definad contnbuton scheme for ds empioyees Pension contnbutions outstanding

and included in accruals al the year end amounted to £511k (2018 £336Kk)
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28 Caled up share capital and other reserves

Group and company Group and company
Calted up Share  Treasury Caliedup Share  Treasury
share  premium shares share  premium Shares
capital account reserve capital account Reserve
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
£000 £'000 EQ0d £000 f£'ano E'000
QOrdinary share capital
issued and fully paid
98 460 {2019 80 000) A Ordinary shargs of £0 Q1 1 114 . 1 79
24615 (2018 14 0C0) B Ordinary shares of £0 01 - 24 (3} . 4
Acquisition of shares by EBT . . (4) - -
Settiement of shares by EBT members - - & - - R
1 144 I5F 1 93

A and B Ordinary shares carry one vote per share All classes of snares have a nominal vaiue of £0 01, have the ngnt to recaive
dridends and a night to return of capital

Qn 16 Janvary 2020 the Company issued 1,500 ‘B’ Ordinary shares at £7 per share ta management
On 15 April 2020 the Company 1ssued 2 500 'B° Ordinary shares at £1 per share to management

Gn 15 September 2024, the Company ssued 18 460 'A Ordinary shares and 4 615 ' 8 Ordinary shares at £1 95 per share (o finance

the Mainstay acquisition

On & Apnl 2020 the Company issued 1 400 '8 Ordinary shares at E1 per share 1o the EBT These were aliocated to ang setted
empioyees at £1 per share

In 2020, the EBT acqurred 1 758 ‘B Ordinary shares at £1 per share and 1 400 ‘B Ordinary shares at £1 95 per share from
management

Gn 21 December 2020 the Company 1ssued 600 'B” Qrdinary shares at £1 95 per share to the EBT Fallowing this, 2 343 B
Grdinary shares were issued (o and seltled by emplavees at £1 95 oer share

The amount within the Treasury shares resarve represents shares held by the EBT that have not yet been issued to employees

oy

The Compaiy recogrises a credt relabng to equity-setiled share-based payments into share-based payment resarve This is not a
reahsed profit and thus 1s a non-distnbutabla reserve For the year ended 31 December 2020 this amounted 1o £68= which includes

£12k fram the 2019 period See note 14 for further deaids

29 Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date the Group and company had outstanding commuments for future mimmuym lease payments under nan-
canceliable operating leases which fall due as follows

Group Company Group Company
2020 2020 2019 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Within one year 1820 - 1400
Between two and five years 1,482 - 1027
tn over five years 388 - & -
3698 . 2433
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k3l

3z

Contingent liabilities

The Group 15 party to a Group Debenture secured over all of its assets in favour of Lucid Trustee Services Limited as a
Security Agem acting on behalf of Natwest and Pemberton The Borrower is FirstPort Limited. a subsidiary company The
lean galance. excluding deferred financing cast. and accrued interest payable outstanding at the balance sheel date were
£97 700k and £1.205k respectively

A number of bank accounts mamntained for developments under management (and inctuded in Chient Manies described n
note 19) were overdrawn at 31 Gecember 2020 amounting to £772 (2019 £2.072). The Group have given unfimited
guarantees oh these amounts in the event of default.

Events aftar the balance sheet date

There have been no events after the balance sheet date that have taken place that has matwenally affected the Group.

Related parties
Group

Eguistane Partners Europe Limited and the funds managed by Equistone Partners Europe Limited regislered in England
and Wales, are regarded as related parties due 1o ther shareholding in the Company. the:r provision of shareholder icans to
the Group. and their reprasentation an the baard of Duectars. which gwes them signmificant influence aver the Company and
Group.

The key management personnel of the Group are considared 1o be the Directoss of the Company and cenam senior
management employees of ihe Group A number of the key management parsonnel have also provided funding to the
Group via shareholder loans and are shareholders of the Company

Transactions with related parties

Tne funds managed by Equistone Pariners Europe Limited and koy management personnel are hotders of Shareholder
Loan Notes. which are included in Borrowings and mcur interesi expense Delalls of these transachons and balances are
shown n note 22

Rernuneration of key management personnegl

The remuneration of key management personnel. which ncludes those directors remuneraled by the Group. 15 as foliows

Year ended Year ended

2020 2019
£'000 E'000

Aggregate emoluments 1072 580
Other gension costs 7 1
1079 591
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32  Related parties {continued)

Company

The Company's only refated parly transactions in the year were wih whofly owned subsidianes and so bave not been disclosed All
balances in the current penod were with wholly owned subsidianies

33 Controlling party

Iy the gpmion of the dweclors the utimate conbuilng parly 15 Tunds managed by kqustone Partners Europe Limited Eguistone
Pariners Europe Limited s registered in England ang Wales

Drive Topeo Limited 5 the parent undertaking of the largest and smallest group of undertakings for which graup financial statements
are prepared

The consoldated firancial statements of Drive Topco Limited are avalable from Companes House, Crown Way Maindy Cardiff

34 Result of the company for the financial year
As permilted by sechon 408 of the Companes Act 2006 the Company's profit and 1058 account nas nat been included in these
nancial staterments  The Company made a profit of £4k in the financial year (2019 En)

35  Subsidiaries
Details of the company's subsidianies at 31 December 2020 are as fol'ows
Name of undertaking and country of incorperation or Nature of Registered % Held
residency business Posteode

Direct Indirect

Amendy Property {Avon Meadows England & Wales
Bidford) Limited No 08641153 Carmant WR5 22X 100 00
Amerity Property (Batannia Mews England & Wales
Telford) Limited MNo 09361858 Dormant WRS5 22X 100 00
Amenity Property (Caliy Bive Fields England & Wales
Slockion) Limited No 10461397 Dormant VRS 27X 100 00
Amenity Property (Entech House Englanag & Wales
Woolmar Green) Limied No 12063981 Dormant WRS 22X 106 00
Amersly Property (Himiey View England & Waies
Dudley) Lim:ted No 08368398 Dormant WRS 22X $00.00
Amendy Praperty (Hugesleah Place Englang & Wales
Highiey} Linnted No 09792589 Dormant WRS 22X 100 60
Amenity Property [Levell Grange Engiand & Wales
Rugeley} Limited No 07639525 Dormant WRS5 27X 100 60
Amemty Properly (Lockside Walk England & Wales
Brierley Hith) Limited No 08043138 Darmant WRS 2ZX 100 00
Amenity Property (Mellent Gardens Englard & Wales
Beworth} Lumited No 12685871 Cormant WRS 22X 106 00
Amerity Property (Milibrook Park England & Wales
London Phase 4A) Limied No 10385756 Dormant WRS 22X 100 00
Amenily Property (Milfbroak Park England & Wales
London Phase 4C) Limided No 11824467 Dormant WRS 22X 100 00
Amenty Property {Milers Reach England & Wales
Stone) Lim.ted No 09245116 Dormant WRS 2ZX 10000
Amenity Property (Qakleigh Grove Engtand & Wales
Whetslone; Limited No 10704287 Dormant WRE 27X 1G0 09
Ameruty Properly (Pennywel Walk England & Wales
Upton Upon Savern} Lirnited No 10030843 Dormant WRS 22X 100 02
Amenity Proparty (Postmark London}  England & Wales
Limiled No 12002086 Dormant WRS 22X 100 00

CF4 3UZ or from the Company's registered office at Queensway House 11 Queensway New Miton Hampshire. UK BH25 SNR
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35

Subsidiaries {(continued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorporation or

residency

Amenity Properly (Preedy Place
Badsey) Lirmued

Amenty Property (Prory Gardens
Market Drayton) Limited

Amenty Propeny (Saddlers
Brook Walsall} Limied

Amenity Property {Scarlett Oaks
Shilnalj Lirnted

Amenity Property (Sherford
Blymaouth Parcet B) Limted

Amenity Proparty (Sharford
Plymouth Parcel F) Limited

Amenity Proparty (Sherford
Plymouth Parcel G) Limided
Amenity Propanty (Sherford
Plymouth Parcel J) Limited

Amenity Propenty {Sherford
Piymouth Parcal L) Limited
Amenity Property {Sherfard
Plymouth Parcel M) Limited
Amendy Property (Shedford
Piymouth Parcet S) Limited

Amenity Praperty {The
Hathaways Stratford) Limited

Amenity Property (Thomas
Beddoes Court Shifnal) Limited

Amenity Property (Walmley Croft
Sutten Celdfield) Limitad

Amenity Praperty (Woodland
View Coventry) Limited

Ameruty Propery Holdings
Limited

Baker Smclar Limied

Baltour Homes Management
Limited

Brook Farm Court Managamant
Limited

Cavend-sh Management
{Narwchy Limnited

CE Antngny Nolan (Fairstead)
Linnted

CE Blerheim Grange ‘Natton
Limited

CE Churchill Gardens
Cambgurne Linnied

ZE Cobbler s Mews Romany
Road bimited

CE Lozk Ml Biackborn Limited

CE Oakfieid Gardens Hyde
Limited

England & Wales No
09155288
England & Wales No
07639332
England & Wales Mo
07639422
Englang & Wales No
10900315
England & Wates No
10839831
Enrgland & Wales No
10839870
Ergland & Wales No
10535172
England & ‘Wates No
11454509
Engfand & Wafes No
11454877
England & ‘Wales No
11923138
England & Wales No
10535333
England & Wales No
03361834
England & wWales No
07639356
England & Wales No
10147213
England & Wales No
07639369
England & Walss No
07635509
England & VWales No
10306287
Engiand & Wales No
01986825
Engtand & Wwales No
2268738
England & Wales No
01831847
England & Wales Na
05354199
England & Wales Mo
05067570
England & Wales No
06453105
England & Wales No
06022591
England & Wales No
06346923
England & Wales No
06405964

Nature of business

Darmant

Cormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Oormant

Dormant

Doermant

Dormant

[errmant

Boenmuint

Daormant

Darmant

Dormant

Dormant

Oorrmant

Non-trading

Bormant

Dormant

Dormant

Darmant

Oormant

Darmany

Dormant

Dormant

Registerad
Posicode
Direct

WRS5 2ZX
WRS 2ZX
WRS 22X
WHRS 22X
VYRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 22x
WRS 27X
WRE 2ZX
WRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 22X
WRS 27X
5G9 0RU
BH25 5NR
BH25 SNR
BH25 5NR
SGoCRU
SGIORU
SGSCRY
SGUORU
SGS ORU

S5GIO0RU

Indirect

10C 00

10000

102 00

100 40

10000

10000

106 00

100 00

100 00

102 00

100 00

100 00

100 0C

10000

100 00

100 00

100 G0

100 00

100 00

100 00

10000

100 00

100 00

1G0 00

100 0G

100 06
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35

Subsidiaries (cominued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorperation  Nature of business

or residency

CE Poppy Frelds
{Berwick] Limited
CE The Hawthorns
Blagklgy Limited

CE Willow Grange Ely
Limited

Chamaonix Estates
Devatopments Limited

Chamomix Estates Limited

Chamonix Group Limited

Chamonix Haldings
Limited

Consort Property
Management Limited

Grive Bidce Limited

Orive Midco Lirmited

Edgewood Management

Services Limited

Edgawood Retirement
Developments Limited

Farfield Company
Secretarnes Limited

Ferndale Retrement
Management Limted

FirstFort Bespoke

Property Services Limited

FiratPort HMF Limited

FirstPon insurance
Services Limitec

FirstPort Investment
FPropertes Limieg

FirsiPort Limited

FirstPort Operations FD
Limited

FirstPort Property
Services Linited

FirstPon Property
Services No 2 Limited

FirstPon Property
Senvices No 3 tirmled

FirstPort Property
Services No 4 Limited

FirstPort Property
Services No 5 Limited

FirstPart Property

Services Scottand Limited

FistPort Retirement
Limited

England & Wales No
06353915
England & Wales No
064435042

England & Wales Na
050672352
England & Wales No
10621470
England & Wales No
05851267

Englard & VWales No
05856372

England & Vvales No
12500321
England & VWalzes Na
DI479628
England & Wales No
12042128
England & Wales No
12043082
Engiand & Wales No
02548602
England & Wates No
02086525
England & Wales Mo
05988785
Engtand & Wales No
01709679
England & Wales No
01623486
England & Wales No
06776282
England & Wales No
03478579
England & Wales N
04352393
England & Wates No
04352396
England & Wales No
06277828
England & Wates Na
02061041
England & Wales No
02231168
England & Wales No
043352415
England & VWales o
07299764
England & Wales No
05876680
England & Wales No
03829468
England & Vvales No
03479623

Darmant
Dormart

Dormant

Dormant

Property Managemant

Progerty Managsment

Property Management
Dormant

Prowision of shared
Senyices

Holding company
Non-trading
Nen-trading

Propeny Management
Dormant

Property management
Investment progerty
Insurance services
Dormant

Prov:sian of shared
services

Investment property
Property management
Property management
Darmant

Property management
Property management

Property management

Dormant

Registered
Postcode
$G9 ORU
SG8 GRY
SGS ORU

5GS 0RU

5G8 ORUY

5G5S CRU

5G4 ORU

BH25 5NR
BH25 S5NR
BHZ5 5MR
BHZS5 SNR
BH25 SNR
SG90RU

BH25 5NR
BH2S SMR
BH25 5NR
BH25 HNR
BH25 5NR
BH25 sNR
Bri25 5NR
BH25 S5NR
BHZ5 SNR
BH25 5NR
BH25 SNR
BH25 5NR
BHZ5 SNR

BH25 SMR

% Held

Direct

100 00

Indirect

100499

100 00

10090

10000

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 GG

100 00

1040 00

‘00 G0

100 G0

100 00

100 00

10000

100 0o

10000

100 00

100 00

00 00

106 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00
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35 Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorporation Nature of business

or residency

FirstPori Retirement
Property Services Limited

FusiPart Secretanal
Limted

FistPod Services Limted

Ground Rent Services
Lemtact

King George Court
Management Limited

Krght Midco Limited

Knght Square Holdings
Limited

Kmght Sguare Limited

Lenghurst Drive
Management Company
Lsmiteq

Maclaren Management
Services Limited

Mamnstay (Secretares)
Limiteq

Mainstay Faciities
Management Limsted

Mainstay Group Limited

Mainstay Payments
Limuted

Mainstay Residental
Limited

Maherdate Gardans
Manzgement Limuted

Maybeck Coliectons
Limiteg

Mendian Homes Linnted

Merdign Mew Homes
Limidey

Meridian Property Group
Limitey

Merchan Retirement
Homes Limited

Meridian Retrement
Housing Services Limied

Mint Property
Management Limited

MRML Limited

OM MNominee Services
Limitey

OM Property Managemant
Linmteqd

England & Wales No
01614866
England & Wates No
05806647
England & Wa'es Na
09142972
England & Wales No
03804854
England & Wales No
03175135
England & Wales No
0792761¢
Engtand & Wales No
07925023
England & Wales No
07925019

England & Wales No
11416290
England & Wales No
02142118
England & Wates No
044583913
England & Wales No
01340310
England & Wales No
04002715
Engiand & Wales No
04771082
England & Wales No
04052477
Engiand & VWales No
02405973
England & Wales No
04052424
England & YWales No
a1averar
England & Wales Ne
02682974
England & Wales No
02306958
England & Wales No
01885186
England & Wales No
018331177
England & Wales No
05543830
England & Wales No
03804173
England & Wales No
06695871
£ngtand & Wales No
08143096

Propery managemerit

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Mon-trading

Holding company

Holding company

Provision of shared

senvices

(Dermant

Clormiunt

Gormam

Preperty Managenmient

Properly Managemes:nt

Dormant

Property Managament

MNon-trading

Dormant

Cormant

Dormant

Non-trading

Dormant

Durant

Non-trading

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Registered

Postcode

BH25 SNR

BH25 5HR

BH25 5NR

SGZ ORU

BH25 SNR

BH25 5NR

BH25 SNR

BH25 5NR

3G9 ORU

BHZS GNR

WRS 22X

WRS 22X

VRS 22X

WRS 22X

WRS 22X

B8H25 SNR

WRS 22X

BH25 8NR

BH25 SNR

BHZ5 5MR

BH25 5NR

BH25 5MR

BH2S 5NR

WRS 272X

8H25 3NR

BH25 SMR

Direct

Y Held

Indirect

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 GG

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

160 00

100 00

100 00

16000

100 00

100 00

10000

100 00

100 0C

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 0C

100 0G

100 00
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35

Subsidiaries {continued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorparation Nature of business

or residency

OM Property Management Eagland & Wales Mo

No.2 Limited
Pegasus Court
(Abergavenny?
Management Limited
Fegasus Court

[Barmwaod) Management

Limiled

Pegasus Court (Bourton-

an-the-Walen)

04375984

England & Wales No
02285749

England & Wales o
02311505
England & Wales Mo
Q2285752

Pegasus Court (Broadway) England & Wales Mo

Management Limited
Pegasus Court (Fleet)
Management Limited

Pegasus Court (Paignton)

Management Limited
Pegasus Court
Cheltennam
(Management) Limited

Pegasus Court Hartiey

Wininey (Management)

Limited

Peagasus Court
Management Limited
Pegasus Thamesnorth
Management Limited

Pembartons Maintenance
Trustees {Aldiord House)

Limited

Pembertona Residential

Lemited

Peverel Bulding
Technolagies Limited
Peverel Management
Services Limited
Peveref Property
Management Limitad

Peverel Scotland Limied

Peverel Services Limited

R C (Hoidings) Limited

R C Housing Limited

Renaissance Management

Serwces Limied

Retremeant Care
(Southera) Limied

Retrement Care Group

Lt

Retrament Care Limied

02392014
England & Wales Na
02318877

Engtand & Wales No
02392342

England & Vales No
n1867554

Engiand & Wales No
421258138

Englang & ‘Vales No
02515929
England & Yales No
02838137

Engiand & ‘NVales Ng
05111218

England & ‘Wales No
09375869

England & Wales Nc
09221891
England & Waies No
09142759
England & Wales Na
09146776
Engtand & Wales No
06145223
England & Waies No
06146279
England & Wales No
02268054
England & Wales Mo
11012025
England & Wales No
03404510
England & Wales No
02488317
England & Wales No
02195300
England & Wales No
01706784

Dormant

Cormant

Dormant
Oormant
Darmant

Cormant

Cormant

Dermant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Oormant

Dormant

Darmant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Hoiding company
Property management
Nan-trading
Mon-trading
investment property

Dormant

Registered
Postcode

BH25 5NR

BH25 5NR

BH2G 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 SNR

BH25 5NR

BH25 5NR

BH2S SNR

BH25 5MNR

BH25 SMR

BH25 5NR

BH25 5NR
BHI5 5NR
BHZ5 MNR
BH25 SNR
BH25 5MR
BH25 5NR
BH25 SNR.
BH25 5MR
BH25 5NR
BHZ23 3NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR

BH2S MR

Direct

% Held

Indirect

100 00

100 00

100 00

10G 00

100 00

100 Q0

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

106 00

100 06

100 00

100 00

100 00

100 0C

100 90

10000

100 00

100 00

100 00

10000

i00 G0

10000
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35  Subsidiaries {continued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorporation or Nature of busginess Registered % Held
residency Postcode
Direct Indirect

England & Wales No

Retrement Homesearch Limited 03829469 Spesalst estale agent  BH25 SNR 10C oo

Retrement Marketing Services  England & Wales No

Limited 02195442 Dermant BH25 3NR 100 00

Sonata Insurance Services England & Wales No

Limited 06704179 Cormant BH25 SNR 100 ao
England & Wales No

Stenedale (2012} Linited (6544398 Dormant BHZ5 5NR 100 00

The regisiered address for suosidanes wilh the posicode BH2S SNR s Queensway Hause 1 Queensway New Ahiton Hampshire,
UK BHZ25 5NR

The registered address for subsidianes wih the postcode WRS 2ZX s Whittington Hall Whittington Road  Worcester
Worcesterstire UK WRS 27X

The regislered address for supsidianies with the postcode SG% ORU is The Maltings Hyde Mall Farm Sandon, Hertlordshire, UK
SGY ORU

All darmant companies are exempt from preparing mdwidual fmancial statements in accordance with s394A of Companies Act 2006
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36

Notes to the cash flow statement

2020 2015
£'000 £'000
Operating loss for the yaar / penod {1.693) {2.238)
Adjustments for
Loss on disposal of tangible assets 55 -
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assels 1421 2.920
Depreciation and impairment of tangible assels 1 849 655
Share-based payments 68 -
Movements 10 working capital
Decrease in debtors 859 1861
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 652 (14 517)
Increase / (decrease) in provision 3 {209)
Cash generated / (used) in operations 12 214 (11.528)
Included i cash generated from operations of £12 214k 1s cash outflow relating to exceptional tems of
£3 718k (2019 £1.301K}
Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1 At 31
January Non-cash December
2020 Cash flows Acquired changes 2020
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4 558 (6641} 9 668 - 7,585
Bank loans (64.200) {33500 - {97,700
Shareholder loans - principal (51 036) {10 395) - . (61.431)
Interest on shareholder toans (1622) 5 - (5.604) {7.221)
Deferred financing costs 2943 1867 - (564) 4,248
Finance leases 54 - - {54) -
(109.303) (48.664) 9.668 {6.222) {154,521}

in respect of the non-cash changes. interest on shareholder loans were deferred at the Group's ophion

The non-cash change of £564k for deferred financing costs relates to £588k of amartisation offset by £24k

cost to be paid 1 2021

The nan-cash change of £54k for finance lease relates to the final unwind of finances leases heid n 2020.
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